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World Presence
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Chairman’s Statement

As the Chairman of a family-controlled
business it falls to me to maintain the
Rothschild tradition of safeguarding
the interests of our clients and staft...

To this end, | am committed to
achieving certain key financial targets,
including sustainable high quality
earnings growth from a well balanced
portfolio of businesses...




Chairman’s Statement

The Bank had a very good year, the highlight of
which was an outstanding performance by our
investment banlkers. Furcher progress was also made
in reshaping the bustness and its management
structure. For all of chis our hard-working and
talented staff deserve great credit.

This year’s financial statements are presented in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The transition to this new and more
complex form of financial reporting is 2 heavy
burden for a business such as ours. Indeed, to
provide a greater degree of year on year
comparability a pro forma consolidated income
statement has been provided for shareholders so
the underlying business performance may be more
clearly understood. Accordingly T refer 1o the more
conservative pro forma figures in my statement.

Total operating income of £370 million is the
highest in the Bank’s history, and well up on last
year’s figure of £250 million. At the same time,
costs were kept under conerol and increased less
than revenues. The result is a record pre-tax profit
of £83.2 million (£41.6 million in 2004-2005).
These figures include the results of the Guernsey
banking business and those of our asser finance
business, the Five Arrows Finance group.

Investment Banking

UK investment banking has long been the main
engine of growth of our business, both in the UK
and for the Rothschild group as a whole. The
M&cA markets were buoyant, bue the UK team
did much more than rise with the tide. They
generated record revenues from an increased
market share, including a significant number of
high value deals, once again emphasising the
Group's ability to compete at the highest level.
For the second consecutive year, our peers and
the financial press chose the Bank as Best UK
M&A House, whilst the group won the award of
Best European M&A House.

9.

We continued to build on our strengths in specific
industry sectors, including Building Materials,
FIG, Healthcare, Industrials, Mining and Merals,
Oil and Gas, Propercy, Transport and Utilities, and
our prominent position in the industry league
tables underscores the success of this strategy.
Restructuring is another sector in which we
remain a market leader.

ABN AMRO Rothschild, our international equity
capital markets collaboration, celebrates its tenth
anniversary. This combines the research, trading
and sales distribution resources of ABN AMRO
with the origination and advisory skills of
Rothschild. As a bulge bracker distributor of
major equity issues it has maintained a top ten
position in the European league tables.

Commercial Banking

Over the last two years the commercial banking
business of the wider Rothschild group has been
substantially reshaped, both in what it does and
where. The business is now concentrated in the
UK, and in 2005-2006 it maintained its recent
record of consistent year on year growth in
revenues and operating profits, However, we have
changed the focus and some of the key components
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Chairman’s Statement

of the UK business, partly in response to market
developments but also to improve returns by
concentrating on those sectors which best suit our
skills and risk appetite.

Today, the Bank's commercial banking activities
include the arranging and provision of debt
finance across the leveraged finance, property,
financial services and natural resources sectors.
Asset financing, including leasing, invoice
discounting and factoring, is provided through
the Five Arrows Finance division,

Wealth Management and
Merchant Banking

The private banking activities of the Bank's
Guernsey substdiary are now being developed
through the wider Rothschild group Wealth
Management arm, which in the UK operates as
Rothschild Private Management and provides a
wide range of services to our private clients. A
successful, high quality wealth management
business is one of the key components of cur
long-term business strategy. With this in mind we
are building closer links berween it and the other
business lines so that private clients can have
access to the full range of services and experience
on offer in the group.

At the group level there is also an emerging
principal investing or merchant banking business,
which is to become the fourch core Rorhschild
business. In the course of our business and
through our extensive network of relationships,
opportunities arise for us to invest for our own
account, often alongside clients and friends. In
future we shall be doing more of this.

Board Changes

Duting the year there were two Board changes.
Sir John Collins, the chairman of DSG
International ple, stepped down but remains a
director of our parent company, Rothschilds

Continuation Holdings AG, and continues his
valuable work as a member of the Bank’s
Remuneration and Nominations Comimittee,
Afrer a distinguished career and 21 years of
service, Paul Tuckwell handed over the reins as
Head of UK Banking to his colleague Peter Johns,
and retired from the Board. We are indebted wo
Paul! for his contribution to the Bank's prosperity.

The Future

No business is sustainable if it does not generate
returns which enable the shareholders to provide
capiral for the business to grow together with a
decent return for themselves. To this end, [ am
cammirted to achieving certain key financial
targets, including sustainable high qualiry
earnings growth from a well balanced portfolio of
businesses, which produces an acceptable return
on shareholders’ funds. This in turn requires a
disciplined approach, both in building the
appropriate mix of revenues and in controlling
costs. Our propercy-related costs in particular are
too high, and rebuilding New Court remains one
of the options under consideration.

The year 2006-2007 has started well, but given
the uncertain economic outlook it is difficult to
look too far ahead. I am confident, however, that
we are in good shape to respond to whatever
tomorrow may bring.

David de Rothschild
15 June 2006




Business Review

Working together creating
intelligent solutions
and delivering advantage

The Rothschild commitment
is to the long-term success
of your business. We judge
our own achievements on
our ability to help you
realise your future

N M Rolhschild & Sony Lhnited




Business Review

Financial Review

International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"}

These financial statements are the first to have been
prepared by the Group in accordance with IFRS.
The Group has adopted IFRS with effect from

1 April 2004, with the exception of TAS 32 and
IAS 39 (the standards relating to the measurement
and disclosure of financial instruments), which
have been adopted with effect from 1 April 2005.
The comparative figures for the year ended 31
March 2005 have been restated to an IFRS basis,
other than in respect of [AS 32 and IAS 39,

The impact of the Group’s transition to TFRS is
explained in note 2 to the financial statements.
One of the key issues arising from the transition
to IFRS concerns the treatment of the Group's
subordinared debt instruments. Under UK
GAAP these instruments were accounted for as
liabilities. As explained in note 21 to the financial
statcments, on adoption of IAS 32 on 1 April
2005, the subordinated debr instruments have
been classified as equity minority interests and
have been accounted for as such from 1 April
2005 to 30 March 2006.

IFRS requires financial instruments to be
classified as liabilities or as equity in accordance
with their legal form, rather than their economic
characreristics, On 30 March 2006, the debt
instruments were reclassified as liabiities following
the issuance of a new class of redeemable preference
shares which have the effect of making interest
payments on the debt instruments compulsory,
thereby causing them o be classified as liabiliries
under IAS 32. In presenting the resulis for cthe
year to 31 March 2006, the Directors have
chosen 1o include a pro forma income statement
that shows the results as they would have been
presented had the subordinared debt instruments

been classified as liabilities throughout the year, i 3
consistent with the previous year's results as well
as those in future years. The following review of
financial performance tefers to the pro forma
results unless otherwise stated.

QOverview

The UK Rothschild Banking Group achieved
record resules in the year to 31 March 2006,
with an extremely strong performance by our
investment banking business. Pre-tax profits were
£87.0 million (on a pro forma basis — IFRS
compliant pre-tax profits were £101.6 million)
compared to £42.2 million in the previous year.
Profits after tax and minority interests increased

from £29.9 million ro £63.9 million.

The financtal performance and strength of the
Group depends on a number of factors. Our
clients’ confidence in us and in the markets in
which we operate is key to the success of our
businesses. Our performance is affected by che
economic cycle and by market conditions; the
uncertain outlook for the world economy and for
financial markets means that the Group’s
performance could be adversely impacted by a
worsening of economic conditions in the UK or
overseas. Note 3 to the financial statements
provides information on some of the key risks to
which the Group is exposed.

Income

Total operating income was £370.0 million, a
48 per cent increase on the previous year.

Net fee and commission income increased from
£172.2 million to £282.9 million, reflecting very
strong growth in investment banking advisory
fees in buoyant M&A markes.

Net interest income increased by 10.6 per cent
from £69.5 million to £76.9 million. In
accordance with IAS 39, net interest income in

N M Rutssehild & Soms Limited
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Business Review

the year to 31 March 2006 includes certain loan-
telated fees which are spread over the life of the
loan; under UK GAAP these fees were recognised
when receivable in fees and commissions. Apart
from this distorting effect of IFRS transition, there
was an underlying increase in net interest income,
primarily as a result of growth in book size and
average margin in our banking loan portfolio.

Costs

Operating expenses (excluding profit share)
increased by 8.8 per cent to £126.0 million.
Within this rotal, staff costs increased by 8.2 per
cent to £84.7 million mainly because of an
increase in headcount, primarily in our investment
banking business. Non-staff costs increased by
10.0 per cent to £41.3 million, pardy as a resulc
of the increased levels of business acrivity.

Directors’ and employees’ profit shares increased
from £83.5 million to £153.4 million, reflecting
the record performance achieved in the year.

Balance Sheet

Total assets of £5.5 billion at 31 March 2006 were
marginally higher than at the previous year end.

The adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 on I April
2005 gave rise to changes to a number of balance
sheet captions as a result of reclassifications of
assets and liabilities, as explained in note 2 1o the
financial statements.

The Group's banking portfolio (including loans
classified as “available for sale” and included in
debrt securities) increased by £0.2 billion over the
year. Offsetting this, there was a reduction of
£0.2 billion in securitised assets in che Real Estaee
Capital programme and other funding vehicles.

Under IFRS, the net Hability in respect of defined
benefit pension funds is recognised on the balance
sheet. The Group recognised a total liability of
£45 million (net of tax) at 31 March 2005; at

31 March 2006, the total liability was £27 million,
the reducrion being due primarily to the payment
of special contributions of £21.5 million during
the year.

Throughout the year, balance sheet liquidity
remained above the minimum liquidity guidelines
set by the Financial Services Authority. The risk
asset ratio reduced during the year as a resule of
IFRS adjustments and the special pension
contribution, bur remains in excess of the minimum
ratio prescribed by the Financial Services Authority.

Operating Divisions

Banking

Qur commercial banking activities include the
arranging and provision of senior and subordinated
finance across the Jeveraged finance, property,
financial services and natural resources sectors.
Our loan portfolio mainly comprises loans to

Rothschild utilises a cross-section
of financing techniques to assist
its clients in achieving the most
beneficial funding structures.
These include traditional balance
sheet funding as well as innovative
use of debt capital markets




Business Review

£20 million of mezzanine finance for the TE]
leveraged buy-out of Weetabix. During the year
we also established a leveraged finance trading
book, reflecting the relatively liquid secondary
markert in this sector.

We also arranged and provided substantial debt
facilities in the property, leveraged finance and
medium/targe UK and other continental European  natural resources sectors. These included:
companies, but we also provide project finance, O
structured commodity finance and asset based
lending worldwide and conduct private lending
through our Guernsey subsidiary, N M Rothschild
& Sons (CI) Limited, Asset financing in the UK, O the purchase of a US$70 million portfolio

the purchase of a £100 million portfelic of
leveraged finance assets from the Royal Bank
of Scotland plc;

including leasing, invoice discounting and of structured commedity finance assets from
factoring, is provided under the Five Arrows ABSA Bank, for borrowers in the oil, gas
Finance label, and metals sectors;

To underpin our property finance business, (O arranging a £457 million senior and junior
Rothschild has established the Real Estate Capiral debt facility on behalf of Insight Investment
conduit through which a number of both single and Tishman International towards the

and multi borrower securitisations have been acquisition of Plantation Place, a 550,000 sq ft
successfully brought to market. During the year office building in Londen EC3;

we arranged a £1 billion commercial morrgage-
backed securitisation for The Hercules Unit Trust,
a Jersey based properry fund advised by Pillar
Property, a subsidiary of British Land ple.

In our leveraged finance business, we will fater
this year launch “Contego”, our first managed
CLO vehicle, following the success of the
“Prospero I” CLO, to which we act as sub-
adviser, Our arrangement with NorchWestern
Mutual continued to develop and we provided

Our teams follow a relationship
driven approach to property
finance, which has led to

many fong term relationships
being developed with a wide
range of both quoted and
private property companies

N M Rothscheld & Soas Limited




Business Review

Our success comes
from our leading
market position and
the quality and value
of advice demonstrated
by our strength and
depth around the world

O  a £118 million senior and junior debt
facility on behalf of Protego Real Estare
Investors LLP towards the acquisition of
three shopping centres in Shrewsbury;

{0  a £73 million senior debt and mezzanine
share-backed facility on behalf of Alburn to
finance the corporate acquisition of a private
property company; and

[  substantial underwriting commirments to
support the leveraged buy-outs of Gala
Group and Orangina.

Investment Banking

Rathschild is the most active investment bank in
Europe for the fourth consecutive year, with
credit for more deals than any other investment
bank. In addition to being financial adviser of
choice, our performance was recognised by our
peers and Financial News through awards for Best
European M&A House and, for the second
consecutive vear, for Best UK M&A House and
Best French M&A House.

Rothschild’s continued focus on specific industry
sectors, combining our in-depth global knowledge
with our understanding of local markets, has
enabled us to mainrain strong positions in the
European sector league tables. In 2005, according

N M Rollischild & Sons Limated

to Thomson Financial, Rothschild ranked Ne.1 in
Utilities, Transport and Building Materials and
held top 5 positions in Oil & Gas, Healtheare,
FIG, Industrials, Property and Mining & Metals.

Rothschild’s active participation in restructuring
deals is evident with major projects in Europe and
America. Recognition in this area came from
Acquisitions Monthly magazine, which named
Rothschild the Restructuring Adviser of the Year
as well as awarding us Restructuring Deal of the
Year for the KarstadtQuelle financial restructuring.

Our success and leading market position is
exemplified by the size and market profile of our
long-term clients as well as more recent additions to
our expanding client base. Excellence in our chosen

Rothschild M&A
fanuary to December 2005 {by value)

Country/Region Rank
Europe . : L3
UK | 2,
France 2
laly |
Ccrmary 8
Worldwide I(j.

Source: Thomson Financial/Dealogic




Business Review

Our restructuring clients
include debtors,
bondholders, creditors’
committees, single creditor
classes and secured creditors

markets and the quality and value of our expertise
are demonstrated by Rothschild’s advice to:

U Shell Transport and Trading on the
US$80 billion merger with Royal Dutch;

O P&O on the £5 billion cash offer from DP
World and the €2.3 billion recommended
cash offer from AP Moeller-Maersk for
Royal P&O Nedlloyd;

()  the Board of Directors of Telewest Global on
providing a fairness opinion regarding the

1JS$9 billion sale to NTL;

O Deutsche Annington on the €7 billion
acquisition of 100 per cenc of Viterra

from E.ON;

(3 BPB on the £4.4 billion defence of a hostile
offer from Saint Gobain;

Celtel on the US$3.4 billion cash offer | i7
from MTC; oo

Narional Grid Transco on the £5.5 billion
disposal of 4 gas distribution networks;

the independent directors of CP Ships on
providing a fairness opinion regarding the
1US$2.4 billion cash offer from TUT;

BAA on the £1.3 billion acquisition of a
75 per cent stake in Budapest Airport;

Lion Capital and Blackstone consortium on
the €1.85 billion acquisition of the European
soft drinks business of Cadbury Schweppes;

Peel Ports on the £995 million acquisition of
The Mersey Docks and Harbour Company;

Doughty Hanson & Co on the £875 million
disposal of the Priory Group to ABN AMRO

Structured Capital;

Texas Pacific on the £700 million
recommended cash offer for British Vita;

Chelys (“Energis”) on the £837 million sale
to Cable & Wireless;

N M Roltnghld & Sens Ezniled
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]

Red Football on the £790 million
unconditional mandarory cash offer for
Manchester United; and

0 KarstadtQuelle on financial restructuring
including: €1.75 billion bank loan;
€535 million rights issue; €170 million
convertible bond; €309 million second lien;
and €675 milfion bridge loan,

ABN AMRO Rothschild (“AAR”), our equity
capital markets collaboration with ABN AMRO,
celebrates its tenth year. This unique arrangement
in equity capital markets combines the research,
ttading and sales distribution of ABN AMRO with
the origination and advisory ability of Rothschild.
As a bulge bracket distributor of major equity
issues it has maintained a top 10 position in the
European league tables. In 2005, Dealogic ranked
ABN AMRO Rothschild No.7 in the European
Equities league table for bookrunner roles.

Recent headline equity capital marker
transactions include:

O KPN's €899 million accelerated bookbuilt
offering, where AAR acted as Lead Manager
and Sele Bookrunner;

O EDF’s €6.1 billion initial public offering,
where AAR acted as Joint Bookrunner and
Adviser to EDF;

0 Mercialys’ €230 million initial public offering,
where AAR acted as Joint Global Co-ordinarer

and Joint Bookrunner, this being the first IPO
of a REIT (Real Estate Investment Trust);
Mercialys’ €237.8 million accelerated
bookbuilt offering, where AAR acted as Joint
Global Co-ordinator and Joint Bookrunner;

O  France Telecom’s €3.4 billion accelerated

bookbuilt offering, where AAR acted as Joint
Bookrunner; and €3 billion share capital
increase, where AAR acted as Joint Global
Co-ordinator and Joint Bookrunner;

0 TNT’s €902.7 million accelerated bookbuile

offering, where AAR acted as Joint Lead
Manager and Joint Bookrunner; and

O Munich Re’s €377.2 million disposal of

Allianz shares via an accelerated bookbuilt
offering, where AAR acted as adviser to
Munich Re.

We provide the highest quality
financial advice and execution
expertise, encompassing Mergers
& Acquisitions, Restructuring,
Private Placements, Privatisations
and Equity Capital Markets
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Risk Management

The identification, measurement
and containment of risk is
integral to the management of
our businesses. Our risk policies
and procedures are regularly
updated to meet changing
business requirements and to
comply with best practice.

The Group Risk Ditector co-ordinates risk policy
and promotes the development and maintenance
of effective procedures throughout the group.
Qur internal audit team reviews our internal
control framework and reports its findings to

the Audit Committee.

The responsibilities and membership of the
Board Committees involved in the oversight of
risk management are set out on pages 26 and 27.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from our lending and trading
activities. The Credit Committee sets limits,
reviews concentrations, monitors exceptions and
makes recommendations on credit decisions to
the Executive Commirtee.

Credit risk arising from dealing activities is
measured on a real-time basis whereby all
exposures relating to a particular counterparty are
aggregated and monitored against limits. Credit
risk on derivative transactions is measured by
summing the current exposure with an allowance
for potential future exposure.

Market Risk 19

Marker risk arises as a result of our activities in
currency, interest rate and equity markets. During
the year, our exposure to matket risk has continued
to be small in relation to our capital, as our trading
activities have been focused on servicing client
requitrernents tather than on proprietary risk-taking.
Market risk figares for the Company are set out
in note 3.3 to the accounts with a description of
the sensitivity-based value at risk methodology
used to monitor and control market risk.

We use financial instruments to manage our
exposure to market risks and to take or alter our
views on future movements in exchange rates,
interest rates and volatility levels. Interest rate
derivatives are used to hedge interest rate
exposures arising from our lending and
corporate treasury activities,

Limits on marker risk exposure are set by the
Executive Committee using the value at risk
methodology described in note 3.3, Monitoring
of market risk limits and determination of trading
profits are underraken independently of the
dealing area. Whilst value at risk is central to the
communication and control of risk, it is
complemented by other controls. These include
stress testing, which estimates the losses which
could occur when markets behave in unusually
volatile ways and with licele liquidity.

Liuidity Risk

Liquidity is measured by classifying assets,
liabilities and other cashflows into future time
bands using a series of prudent assumptions and
calculating the resufrant surplus or deficit in each
perioed. The Group Assets and Liabilities
Committee recommends policies and procedures
for the management of liquidity risk. The
Executive Committee has ser deficit limirts for
each period, which are monitored daily
independently of the dealing area.

N A Ruthshitd & Sony Limited
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Operational Risk

Operarional risk, which is inherent in all business
activides, is the risk of loss arising from the failure
of internal controls, operational processes or
systems, or from external cvents, Key to our
management of operational risk is the maintenance
of a strong framework of internal controls. These
are subjecr to regular independent review by our
internal audit department, whose findings are
reported to the Audic Committes which monitors
the implementation of any recommendations.
Operational risk encompasses reputational risk,
which is particulasly relevant to our business.
Repurarional risk is managed through formal
approval processes for new business and
operational procedures for the conduct of business.
The Group maintains insurance policies 1o mitigate
loss in the event of certain operational risk events.
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Report of the Directors

To be submitted at the thirty ninth Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders on I5 June 2006.

The Directors present their Directors’ report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006.

Principal Activities and Business Review

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings (“the Group”),
operating out of the UK and the Channel Islands, provide a comprehensive range of banking and
financial services. A teview of the activities of the Group for the year, including an indication of likely
future developments, is contained in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 10 and the Business Review
on pages 11 o 20.

Results and Dividends

The operating profit of the Group for the financial year before directors’ and employees’ profic share and
before tax amounted to £251,116,000 (2005: £125,057,000). The profit for the financial year attriburable
1o shareholders after tax and minority interests was £65,380,000 (2005: £29,871,000). It is recommended
that this amount be dealt with as follows:

2006 2005
£000 £'000

Ordinary dividends
Final paig (in respect of prior year) 12,500 5,000
i‘r'ﬁ‘éhr}{r;ﬁaid e e e e e T ls,oodm '2500
F'héi'pai‘d” : | e ‘ 251}0{) R S
Tearsfer to reserves 0 gge 12371
65,380 29,871

Corporate and Social Responsibility

The Group is commited to supporting the principle of equal opportunities and opposes all forms of
unlawful or unfair discriminarion on the grounds of colour, race, nationality, ethnic origin, gender,
marital status, disabilicy, refigion, age or sexual orientation. The Group's aim is o recruit, erain and promote
the best person for the job and to create a working environment free from unlawful discrimination,
victimisation and harassment, and in which all employees are treated with dignity and respect.

The Group is committed to supporting charities both in the areas in which it operates and those in the
wider community. The Charities Commirtee was established in 1975 to consider the hundreds of requests
received every vear from charities seeking financial support. The sum of £709.000 (2005: £862,000) was
charged against the profits of the Group during the year in respect of gifts for charitable purposes. No
political contributions were made during che year.

N AT Rotinghiid & Sois Lisrted
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Report of the Directors

Corporate and Social Responsibility {continued)

Typical beneficiaries continue to include organisations concerned with eldetly people, healthcare, social
welfare and education, Requests for support from stafl in respect of charitable causes with which they are
associated, or have an involvement, are actively encouraged.

Apart from making financial donations, the Group also provides charitable supporr in the form of the
involvement of members of staff in various community programmes. In particular, it is a supporter of
The Speciatist Schools Trust {(promoting a dialogue berween educators and financial institutions) and The
Prince’s Trust (several members of staff being engaged as “business mentors” to Trust-sponsored businesses).

Staff

During the year the Group continued with its long-established policy of providing employees with
information on matters of concern to them and on developments within the Group by a series of notices
to staff. The Group encourages staff to put forward their views through a staff consulrative commirtee.
The interest of afl staff in the performance of the Group is realised through the Group’s profit sharing
scheme in which staff at all levels participate.

Applications for employment by disabled persons are fully and fairly considered having regard to the
aptitudes and abilities of each applicant. Efforts are made to enable employees who become disabled
during employment to continue their career with the Group.

Directors

The names of the present Ditectors of the Company are shown on page 5. Brief biographical details of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors are included on page 115.

No Directors have been appointed since the last Annual General Meeting,

The following Directors have resigned since the last Annual General Meeting: Sir John Collins (18 January
2006), Paul Tuckwell {28 February 2006).

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Details of the interests of the directors of the Company in the shares of Group companies are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements,




Report of the Directors

Financial Risk Management

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Company and the Group in respect of the
use of financial instruments, together with analyses of exposures to market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk, are set out in note 3 ro the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG Audit Ple have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint
them and to authorise the directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, in accordance with Section 384 of the Companies Act 1985.

Audit Information

The Directots who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are cach
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each
Director has taken alt the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

By Order of the Board

Jonathan Westcotr, Secretary

New Court, St. Swithin’s Lane, London EC4P 4DU
15 June 2006

3
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Committees

As part of a review of the corporate governance framework of the wider Rothschild group, a number of
changes have been made in the structure of the committees to which the Board delegates authority for
the administration of the Company’s and the Group's affairs. The terms of reference and membership of
the key committees are summarised below:

Group Management Committee

The Group Management Committee reports to the Board of Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG.
Its purposes are to formulate strategy for the Rothschild group’s businesses, to assess the delivery of that
strategy, to ensure the proper and effective functioning of group governance structures, operating policies
and procedures, to define the group’s risk appetite and to be responsible for the management of risk.

Membership: David de Rothschild (Chairman), Eric de Rothschild, Anthony Alr, Michael Bussey,
Anthony Chapman, Andrew Didham, Frangois Henrot, Nigel Higgins, Joshua Hoffman, Peter Johns,
Richard Martin, Gerald Rosenfeld, Nicholas Wrigley.

Executive Committee

This committee meets twice a week, and as required, to approve key underwriting commitments, loans,
credit decisions, dealing limits, new clients and new products, and to consider major business and market
developments and operational risk.

Membership: Anthony Alt (Chairman), Leopold de Rothschild, Julia Ashworth, Isobel Baxter, Glenn
Beatham, Christopher Coleman, Graham Curds, Paul Duffy, Jonathan Eddis, Timothy Hancock, Peter
Johns, Charles Keay, Simon Linnett, Charles Mercey, James Vaux, Jonathan Westcott, Philip Yeates.

Credit Committee

This committee authorises and reviews all credit exposure to new and existing counterparties. Exposures
exceeding certain limits are subject to ratification by the Executive Commitcee.

Membership: Christopher Coleman (Chairman), Leopold de Rothschild, Glenn Beatham, Graham Curds,
Peter Griggs, Peter Johns, Charles Keay, Debra Lewis, Andrew Radkiewicz, David Streer, Philip Yeates.



Committees

Group Assets and Liabilities Committee

This committee reports to the Group Management Committee. It is responsible for ensuring thar the 971
Group has prudent funding and liquidity strategies, for the efficient management and deployment of ‘
capital resources within regulatory constraints, and for the oversight of the management of the Group’s
balance sheet.

Membership: Andrew Didham {Chairman}, Anthony Alt, Isobel Baxter, Graham Curds, Timothy Hancock,
Peter Johns, Noland Carer.

Audit Committee

This committee of the board of Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG supervises and reviews the
Group’s internal audit arrangements, liaises with the Group’s external auditors and monitors the overall
system and standards of internal control.

Membership: Peter Smith (Chairman), Sir Graham Hearne, Bernard Myers, Sir Clive Whitmore.

Remuneration and Nominations Committee

This committee approves the appointment, and sets the remuneration, of executive directors and other
senior execurives and approves guidelines for the Company’s annual pay reviews and profit sharing scheme.

Membership: Sir Clive Whitmore (Chairman), David de Rothschild, Eric de Rothschild, Sir John Collins,
Sir Graham Hearne.

N AT Rotbschild & Sois Laimited




N M Rethschild & Soms Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in Relation to the Report of the Directors
and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requises the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected o prepare both the Group and the Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with 1FRS as adopted by the EU.

The Group and Parent Company financial statements are required by law and IFRS as adopted by the
EU to present fairly the financial position of the Group and the Parent Company and the performance
for the period; the Companies Act 1985 provides in relation to such financial statements that references
in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to their
achieving a fair presentation.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial statemens, the Direcrors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the group and the parent company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985, They have a general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.



Report of the Independent Auditors,
KPMG Audit Plc, to the Members of
N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of
N M Rathschild & Sons Limited for the year ended 31 March 2006 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement (including the pro forma information), the Consolidated and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consolidated and
Parent Company Statements of Recognised Income and Expense and the related notes. These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies sex out therein.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and the terms of our engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members those macters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company, and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the EU are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 28.

Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Audiring (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We also report to you whether, in our
opinion, the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements, The information given in the
Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Business Review that is cross-
teferenced from the Principal Activities and Business Review section of the Directors’ Report. We also
report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audir, or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the Directors’ Report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements within it.

N M Ruthechiid & Sons Limited
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Report of the Independent Auditors,
KPMG Audit Plc, to the Members of
N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

Basis of Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obrain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance thar the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity
or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
- the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the

EU, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2006, and of its profit for the year then ended;
- the Parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU as applied in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the
Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2006;
- the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

- the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

London

KOGt fle

15 June 2006

F—



Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2006

2006
2006 Pro forma 2005
Note £'000 £'000 £'000
Interest and similar income 4 296972 296972 272474 1331
nterest expense and simiar charges 4 (207581) (220087) (202.896) L
Net interest income 89.3%1 76, 885 69,528
Fee and commission income 5 36l 311616 177519
Fee and commission expense s ey (28.729) (5.749)
D.wdend e L e o R
et tmdmg .ncomé e e 6,i N T e
IR Secnr et . e o s e :
equity securities 14 08 108 -
Other operating \Vncome S 5,846 7 7 5 846 - 5033
Total operating income 384,620 370,037 250,331
Impalrment losses on Ioans‘and advances ” I3 o (3 264 ‘ 7 (3, 264) 7 - (4409)
Impaurmenrtrlrérsses on debt and aquity secun‘aes 14 (588). (588} ) “ 783
Net operating income 180,768 366,185 246, 705
Operatmg expenses (excludmg profit share) 8 I25 988) o ..(.I-25‘9‘8.8)7 7 (tis 842)
Directors’ and employees profit share 9 |53 358). R (153,358) (83 474)‘_
Depreciation and amortisaion 17,18 (3664 (3664) (5,806)
Operatrng profit before profit share and tax 251,116 236,533 125057
Directors' and employees’ profit share ©5{153358)  (153.358)  (83474)
Operatlng prof't before tax 97,758 83,175 4I 583
Loss on d!sposal of subsu:llar)ar undertakmg lllllllllllllllllllll - o (226) .
Share of profit of associated undertalkings s 7 737,826 o o j.SZé I T
Profit before income tax 101,584 87,001 42,155
Income tax expense o 26978) (22603) (11,660)
Profit for the financial year 74,606 64,398 30,495
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent company 65 380 63,927 29871
'Mmomty S R e ‘ = s
74,606 64,398 30,495

In accordance with IFRS, subordinared debr instruments of the Group and the Company have been

accounted for as equity minority interests in cthe period 1 April 2005 o 30 March 2006, With effect

from 30 March 2006, the subordinated debr instruments have been reclassified as liabilities following

the issuance of cumulative redeemable preference shares. It is the view of the Directors that accounting

for these instruments as equity minority interests in 2005-2006 does not fully reflect their economic

characreristics and makes year on year comparison of the results difficult, because the instruments were
treated as liabilities in 2004-2005 and will be treared as liabilities again in 2006-2007. Accordingly, the
pro forma income statement above shows the results for the year as they would have been presented had

the subordinated debt instruments been classified as liabilities throughout the year. Note 21 on page 93

provides further explanation of this matter.

The notes on pages 38 to 11 form an integral part of these financial staternents

N At Ruthschild & Sony Lmited



Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2006

2006 2005
Note £000 £000
@ Assets
L Cash and balances at central banks ' 24 1511
bé.n.vatnve fnanc\al instruments o o o I7,.6.46m“ . 7 .
Loans and advances to banks T l I3 ....... 81250 o 446.280.
Loans and advances to customers N k| ‘2‘077,020 . 2.258.60797
. ity securmes R R 3,073,57_“0“ T ‘2‘438"338”
|}{v”e's{rﬁ'éh't's" én assomated undertakings s T s 8823
|ntang|b|e S S S 5034 . 'j,480
Propery. pan: an;d equ\pmem . S e — 2971 T
A e i
G . R e |55,3|.|.. i9|',536m
Total assets 5,478,474 5,396,447
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 2127256 1,665,648
Due to customers ! ”"|448225 . ...|384935,
Derivative financiat |hstruments o T 12 40550 o -
Debt securities inissue o 1033539 1507513
Subo mated habi ies e e : T - 232 296. . 230980“'
Other I|ab\||t|es e e e o Lo 72735 - 160008
P taxhab\imes e U P !4790, 4,3837
Total liabilities 5.|84,68| 5,113,222
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 50,000 50,000
Retamed eam.ﬁg; o e e s 239252 . 229 o
i e e e 4'090‘ e ol
Total shareholders’ equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent 32 293,342 279,578
‘Mi'ﬁority ‘mterés‘t;_ O e S T 164_}.&
Total equity and liabilities 5,478,474 5,396,447

The accounts on pages 33 to 111 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2006 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Tk i n=d

Isobel Baxter, Finance Director

The notes on pages 38 to Fii form an integral part of these financal statements

N M Rothschild & Sons Limiled



Company Balance Sheet

At 3f March 2006

2006 2005

Note £000 £'000
Assets :?
Cash and ba\ances at central banks 24 27
Denvatlve ﬁnanaal mstruments 7 o n I33I5‘ : -
Loans and advances to banks I 13 31350 246211
Loans and advances to custorﬁérs S 13‘ N 306 ISO 7 o 4I§79|
Debt and equity securties R P 2533516 1,786,035
Shares g sub5|d|ary Undem%.gs B 5 e 34786 ...................... Jaree
lnvestments in associated undertakmgs ' ' s 7803 7303
Investments m jomt ventures R 16 429 429 )
Property p\aﬂt and eqUIpment T e 3008 - 3570
Deferred tax assets I s 40253 30855
S e e e s Voriin
Total assets 4,102,138 3,691,611
Liabilities
Depasits by banks - 2,008,889 1,466,270
Due o custormers . | 0|4463 o |O78560
Denvatwe fnanoal anstruments R T I9 637““”” : -
o s e e e T 37| B P
S S e e 23 296””“ i 230980'
Other lizbities T e 137747
Current tax liabiiies ' 10727 1091
Accruals and deferred income 195433 128123
Total liabilities 3,901,588 3,493,366
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 5G.000 50 000
Retained camings 148408 148245
b e e >
Total shargholders’ equity 32 200,550 198,245
Total equity and liabilities 4,102,138 3,691,611

The accounts on pages 33 to 111 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2006 and were

signed on its behalf by:
Tk in~d

Isobel Baxter, Finance Director

The notes on pages 38 10 111 form an integrad part of these financial staternents

N M Rutbechikl & Sons Limited
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N M Rolhschild & Sons Limiled

Statements of Recognised

Income and Expense
For the year ended 3! March 2006

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Net income recognised directly in equity
Available-for-sale investrments
Gams/{losses) from changes in falr value (557 319}
(Gains)/losses tr'ansferred to income R
on disposal and impairment (900) (873 - -
ot o hedges e e LSRRt S
Gains/(losses) from changes in fair value
of effective portion of cash flow hedges (57 o (98) - -
Net (gains)/losses trangt;éh:;ed to Encoﬁél o . o
an dasposa! and |mpa|rment 113 113 - -
Other items recognlsed dn-ectiy-m equnry D
Actuarlai gams.’(losses) on defned beneﬁt pensnon funds 24 3.069 4221 {17490y (16647)
Exchange differences on trans\atlon of forelgn opemtlons o 32 R ZIEl!. - 20| R
Aggregate tax effect of ftems taken d\rectly to e
or transferred from equity (567) (887) 5110 4995
13I9 2,157 {12179)  (11.652)
Profit for the fnancial year 74606 62353 30495 30483
Total recognised income and expense for the financial year 75,925 64510 8,316 18,831
Arctributable to
- Equity shareholders of the parent 66,699 55, 755 17,692 18,834
_Mmomymtemﬁs P S 9226 . 8 755 e S
75,925 64,510 18,316 18,831
Effect of changes in accounting policy e e o
Adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 on | April 2005 2 (1.361) (1876} - -
74,564 62,634 18316 18,831
The notes an pages 38 to 11 form an mtegral part of these financial statements




Cash Flow Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2006

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group  Company Group  Company

Note £000 £000 £'000 £000

Cash flow from operating activities

Nel prort for the ﬁnancnal year 7’1‘606 62,353 30,495 30,483
Adjustments to reconcile net proft to cash flow from operatmg actlvities o S 5]
Non-cash items included in net profit and other adjustments [ 3?

Deprecuat:on and amorhsatlon 3.664 1,453 5.806 2136

”Share of operating profl o!’ assocnaled underlaklngs ...... (3826) N . (7’98)‘ -

. Empalrment of ﬁnancnl aﬂd olhe| assets (et of recovery) 3 852 4, SOI‘ o 3 626. . 4577
ncome tax opense 26978 23008 11660 11040
”-Loss an dlsposai of subssdnames - o 226 -
Unreahsed exchange (gams)/losses T 286 450 (I 390 ‘ e 389)”
 Profit on disposal of fixed assets 218 sy ey @y

30,736 29,407 18,946 16,315
Net {increase)/decrease in operating assets
Net due 10/from banks (exc uding r:ash equnvalents) 494,198 543585  (128931) 188,201t
. Denvatwes o 54803 50 847' - o
Debt and equnty securities | (440585) (555 [ |0) @483l (347.627)
 Loans and advances to > customers (15274 (83097)  (74087) (159.099) ‘
" Accrued income, prepald expenses and other assets (33‘332). ””(BZOIé) T 362325 365',63'{.
59810  (757%1) (95.524) 47,106
Net increase/(decrease) in operating Habilities
Customer deposits 63415 (64,069) (55,412} (29.530)
. Denvanves e e e 34903) e 5
Issued debt securities - '(473049)'"“"(‘“}"9.3'952')" " 436381 117255
" Accrued expenses and other ||ab|||1|es R U 34864 42079 ”(ZTI BOZ)‘M (270 857')‘
' Incorne taxes paid o T84 (14269 (17801)  (12.85¢)
(427.787)  (163,787) 91,366  (196,388)
Net cash flow from operating activities” (262,635)  {147.818) 45283  (102,484)
Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities
Acqwsmonlmcrease in stake of subsidiaries and ciated underiakings (5.884) (500) (1 857 (1,775)
Dividends received from associated undertakngs A T 04 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries - - . |9375...... -
Purchase of properly 2nd other lixed assels C(3s08)  (019)  (63%6)  (647)
Dlsposal of properly and olher fixed assets o l699 ) 43 2. 667” T
Net cash flow from/{used in) investing activities (6.599) (1,386) 14,823 {2.100)
Cash flow from/{used in} financing activities
Cash from issuance: of subord:nrﬂed debl - - 103,011 103,011
Cash fmm issuance of plefe\ ence shares R 100 . o -
Dividends paid o (52500)  (52.500)  (17500) {17500
Subordinated debt interest due to mlr.b.r.ﬂy. ....... (125()6) - (I2506} ‘ - -
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (64.906) (64,9086} 85,511 85,511
Net increase/(decrease) in cash equivalents (334,140) (214,110} 145,617 (19.073)
Cash and cash equivalents at | Apri 403310 238620 257693 257693
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 1% 69,170 24510 403,310 238,620

* Group: cash paid and receved for interest dunng 2006 was £218.358,000 (2005: £200:082000) and £302576.000

(2005: 258,317,000) respectively.

~ Company: cash paid and recevad for interest during 2006 was £132,700000 (2005: £115414.000) and £167,985.000

(2005: £132,823.000) respectively.

The notes an pages 38 to L form anintegral part of these financial statements

N M Rothschifd & Sons Liniled
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)
For the year ended 31 March 2006

[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited (“the Company”) is a company incorpotated in the United Kingdom.
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries and jointly-
controlled entities {together referred to as “the Group”) and equity account for the Group’s interests in
associates. The Parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a
separate entity and not about its group.

The TASB has issued IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures for application in accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The new disclosures will be adopted by the Group in the year
ending 31 March 2008,

The Group has not adopted, in relation to financial guarantee contracts, amendments to [AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, which will apply for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2006, Where one Group company enters into financial guarantee
contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the Group, that company considers
these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Group company
treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable thar they
will be required to make a payment under the guarantee. It is not expected that the amendments will
have any impact on the financial starements for the period commencing 1 April 2006.

Basis of preparation

Both the Parent Company and the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC™) interptetations, endorsed by the European Union (“EU") and with those
requirements of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial
statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale investments,
financial assets held for trading and all derivative contracts, which are stated at their fair value,

The principal accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied in the presentation of the
Group financial statements, excepe for those relating to the measurement and classification of financial
instruments as the Group has elected not to restate the comparative figures for the year ended 31 March
2005 for TAS 32 and IAS 39. The policies applied to financial instruments for 2005 and 2006 are

disclosed separately below.

Both the Group and the Company have adopted IFRS for the year ended 31 March 2006 and the
comparative financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated in accordance
with IFRS, An explanation of how the transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial position and
financial performance of the Group is provided in note 2.



Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

I Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

1

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group are made up to 31 March 2006 and consolidate the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings. In order to avoid undue delay in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of certain subsidiary
undertakings are made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally as a result of a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights, so as to obtain benefits from the activities of the entity. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or converrible are taken into account. Subsidiary
undertakings are fully consolidated from the date on which the Group acquires control, and cease to be
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting for the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given as consideration, shares issued or
liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisicion, plus any costs directly attriburable to the acquisition. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary
undertaking acquired is recorded as goodwill. All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
surpluses and deficits on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation. The
accounting policies used by subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.

The financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries are made up to a date not carlier than three months
before the balance sheet date and are adjusted, where necessary, to conform with the accounting polices
of the Group and for any material transactions or events that occur between the two dates.

Associated undertakings

An associated undertaking is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over
the operating and financial management policy decisions. This is generally demonstrated by the Group
holding in excess of 20 per cent, but no more than 50 per cent, of the voting rights.

The Group’s investments in associated undertakings are inicially recorded at cost. Subsequently they are
increased or decreased by the Group's share of the post-acquisition profit or loss, or by other movements
reflected directly in the equity of the associated undertakings. When the Group's share of losses in an
associated undertaking equals or exceeds its interest in the associated undertaking, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated
undertaking. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associated undertaking is included in the cost of
the investment (net of any accumulated impairment loss).

The Group’s share of the post-tax results of associated undertakings is based on financial statements made
up to a date not earlier than three months before the balance sheer date, adjusted 1o conform with the
accounting polices of the Group and for any material transactions or events that occur between the two dates.

N M Ruthselild & Soms Lisnted
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation {continued)

Joint Ventures
Joint ventures, in which the Group has a contractual arrangement with one or more parties to undertake
activities jointly, may take the form of a jointly controlled entity or a jointly controlled operation.

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of an entity in which each
venturer has an interest. Jointly controlled entities are consolidated using the proportional consolidation
method, under which the Group’s financial statements include its shate of the joint ventures assets,
liabilities, income and expenses on a line-by-line basis. Proportional consolidation is discontinued when
the Group no longer exercises joint control over the entity.

Jointly controlled operations are those joint ventures involving the use of the assets and other resources
of the venturers themselves, rather than the establishment of an entity. The Company includes in its
individual financial statements (and therefore in the Group’s consolidated financial statements) all the
assets that it controls and the liabilities and expenses that it incurs in the course of pursuing the joint
operation, and its share of the income from the joint operation.

Foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group’s reporting currency. Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using their funcrional currency. The functional currency is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates.

Income statements and cash flows of foreign operations are translated into the Group's reporting currency
at average exchange rates for the period where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transactions and their balance sheets are translated at the exchange rate at the end of
the period. Exchange differences arising from the transfation of the net investment in foreign subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are raken to shareholders’ equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, these
translation differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for ar the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the translation
at period end exchange rates of monetary items that are denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised
in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities thar are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
when the fair value was determined.

Translation differences on equities classified as ar fair value through profit or loss are reporeed as pare of
the fair value gain or loss in the income statement. Translation differences on equities classified as
avaitable-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
tiabilities of the foreign entiry and are translated at the closing rate.



Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

From 1 Aprif 2004 to 31 March 2005

Derivatives

Foreign exchange, bullion and interest rate contraces used in trading aceivities are carried at fair value
and all gains and losses are taken to the profit and loss account, Fair values are based on quored market
prices when available. Whete no quoted prices are available for a particular derivative, its fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market prices for its component parts. Fair values reflect adjustments
for credir risk and market risk. Credit risk adjustments are made by reference to default probabilities
based on the counterparty’s credit rating. Market risk adjustments reflect the cost which would be
incurred in closing out market risk positions.

Derivative instruments are used to hedge exposutres in the non-trading book. In order to qualify as a hedge,
2 transaction must be designated as such at inception and be demonstrably effective as a hedge by reducing
exposure. The accounting treatment of such instruments reflects the accounting treatment of the assets
and liabilities being hedged. If the underlying position matures or is extinguished, the hedge is ransferred
to the trading book at fair value and any gain or loss is taken to the profit and loss account. If a hedge
ceases to be effective through the sale, termination, maturity or extinguishing of the hedge position, any
gain or loss is deferred and amortised in the profit and loss account over the original life of the hedge.

From 1 April 2005

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

Embedded derivatives

Some hybrid contracts contain both a derivative and a non-derivative component. In such cases, the
derivative component is termed an embedded derivative. Where the economic characreristics and risks
of embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contract, and where the hybrid
contract itself is not carried at fair value through profit or loss, the embedded derivative is separated and
reported at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the income statement.

Hedge accounting

The Group may apply either fair value or cash flow hedge accounting when transactions meet the criteria
for hedge accounting treatment set out in IAS 39. At the inception of the hedge, the Group assesses
whether the hedging derivatives meet the effectiveness criteria of IAS 39 in offsetting changes in the fair
value or cash flows of the hedged items. The Group then documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item. It also records its risk management objectives, its strategy for undertaking
the hedge transaction and the methods used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

After inception effectiveness is tested on an on-geing basis. Hedge accounting is discontinued when it is
determined thart a derivative has ceased ro be highly effective, or when the derivative or the hedged item
is derecognised, or when the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur.

N M Ruthschild & Sanss Lasided
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[ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedge accounting
Changes in value of fair value hedge derivatives are recorded in the income statement, together with fair
value changes to the underlying hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged.

I the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the difference between the carrying value
of the hedged item on termination of the hedging relationship and the value at which it would have been
cartied had the hedge never existed is amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity where the hedged
item is accounted for using the effective interest rate method. Where the hedged item is an available-for-
sale equity security, the adjustment remains in retained carnings until the disposal of the equity security.

Cash flow hedge accounting
Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of derivatives designared as cash flow hedges are
recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the income
statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement when the item being
hedged impacts profit or loss.

When hedge accounting is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss in equity remains in equity and is
only recognised in the income statement when the forecast transaction is recognised in the income
statement. When the forecast rransaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative balance in equity
is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Nert investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges.
Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised
in equity; the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement, Gains and losses accumulated in equiry are included in the income statement when the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Trading income

From I April 2004 ro 31 March 2005
Dealing profits arising from trading activities are reported on a mark to market basis after deduction of
telated funding costs.

From 1 April 2005
Trading income arises from movements in the fair value of financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, and from hedging straregies.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from services provided to clients. Fee income from advisory
and other services can be divided into two broad categories; fees earned from services that are provided
over a period of time, which are recognised over the period in which the service is provided: and fees that
are earned on completion of a significant act or on the occurrence of an event, such as the completion
of & rransaction, which are recognised when the act is completed or the event occurs.
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I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Fee and commission income (continued)

From 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005
Fees relating to loans, guaranrees and acceptances are recognised over the period of the loan facility or
exposure, except for fees in respect of work performed at the inception of the transaction which are

recognised when receivable.

From 1 April 2005
Fees and commissions that are an integral part of a loan are deferred (together with related direct costs)
and recognised over the life of the loan as an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Interest income and expense

From I April 2004 ro 31 March 2005

Interest receivable and payable represents all interest arising out of banking activities, including lending
and deposit-taking business, interest on related hedging transactions and interest on debt securities.
Interest on all financial instruments is accounted for on an aceruals basis.

From 1 April 2005

Interest receivable and payable represents interest arising out of banking activities, including lending and
deposit-taking business, interest on related hedging transactions and interest on debt securities. Interest
on financial instruments, except those classified as held for trading or designated ac fair value through
profit or loss, is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows of a financial
instrument to its net carrying amount. It is used to calculate the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and to allocate the interest over the relevant period (usually the expected life of the
instrument). When calculating the effecrive interest rate, the Group considers all contractual rerms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes any premiums or discounts, as well as all fees and transaction costs that are an

integral part of the loan.

Financial asscts and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on trade dates and derecognised on either trade date, if
applicable, or on macurity or repayment.

From I April 2004 to 31 March 2005

Debt securities and equity shares

Debt securities and equity shares which are held for the longer term or until maturity are classified as
invesrment securities. They are stated at cost less any amounts written off to reflect impairmenc in value.
The cost of dated investment securities is adjusted to reflect amortisation and accrerion of premiums and
discounts on acquisition on a straight-line basis over the residual period to maturity. The amorrisation
and aceretion of premiums and discounts is included in interest income.

Debr securities and equity shares other than investment securities are classified as dealing securities and
are held ar market value in the case of listed securities, or directors’ estimare of market value in the case

of unlisted securities.

N M Rothschiild & Sons Limited
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[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Financial assets and liabilitics (continued)

From 1 April 2005
On initial recognition, IAS 39 requires that financial assets be classified into the following categories; at
fair value through profic or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading, (i.e. primarily acquired for the purpose of
selling in the short term), detivatives that are not designated as cash flow or net investment hedges, and
any financial assers that are designated as fair value through profit and loss on inception. These financial
assets are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recorded immediately in the income
statement and are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are recognised in the income statement as net trading income,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans which are intended to be sold in the short term are recorded ar fair
value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are initially recorded at fair value, including any transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments comprise non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as
available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classified into the categories described above. They are
initially recognised at fair value, including direct and incremental transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in equity uncil the financial asset is sold, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to the
income statement. Interest (determined using the effective interest rate method}, impairment losses and
translation differences on monetary items are recognised in the income statement as they arise.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets is based on current bid prices. For other financial
assets, the Group establishes fair value by using appropriate valuation rechniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation methods commonly used by marker participants. The fair value of short-term debtors is equal
to invoice value,

Financial liabilities
Except for derivatives, which are classified as at fair value chrough profit or loss on initial recognition, all
financial liabilicies are carried at amortised cost.
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[, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asser when:

i. the contractual rights to cash flows arising from the financial assets have expired; or

ii. it transfers the financial asset including substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
ownership of the asset; or

iii. it transfers the financial asset, neither retaining nor transferting substantially 2l the risks and
rewards of the asset, but no longer retains control of the asset.

Securitisation transactions

The Group has issued debt securities or has entered into funding arrangements with lenders in order to
finance specific financial assets.

In general, both the assets and the related liabilities from these transactions are held on the Group’s
balance sheet. However, to the extent that the risks and returns associated with the financial instruments
have been transferred to a third party, the assets and liabilities are derecognised in whole or in part.

Interests in securitised financial assets may be retained or raken in the form of senior or subordinated
tranches, or other residual interests. Such retained interests are primarily recorded as available-for-sale assets.

Transactions that were previously disclosed in the balance sheet with linked presentation, as required under
UK GAAD, are presented under IFRS with separate recognition of the gross assets and the related funding.

Impairment of financtal assets

From 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made as considered necessary having regard to both
specific and general factors. Specific provisions are made on a case by case basis where the repayment of
identified loans is in doubt, and reflect estimates of the amount needed to reduce the carrying value of
the asset to the estimated net realisable value. Provisions made less amounts released during the year are
charged against profits. Provisions are applied to write off advances, in part or in whole, when they are

considered irrecoverable.

The general bad debt provision augments specific provisions and relates to the inherent risk of losses
which, although not separately identified, is known from experience to be present in any loan portfolio,
and to those identified loans where material uncertainty exists as to the quantum of specific provisions
required. The amount of the general bad debe provision is assessed in relation to the size and asset quality
of the loan portfolio.

Interest on loans and advances is accrued to income until such time as reasonable doubt exists about is
collectability; thereafter, and until all or parr of the loan is written off, interest continues to accrue on
loans and advances, but is not included in tncome.

B 81 Rothselueld & Sons Linited
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[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets {continued)

From 1 April 2005
Assers carried at amortised cost are assessed at cach balance sheet date t determine whether there is
objective evidence thata financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events occurring after initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impacr on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated, Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
about the following foss events:

i. significant financial difficulty of the issuer;

ii. abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal repayment;

ifi. granting to the bortower a concession, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

iv. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Impairment of loans and reccivables

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. Impairment losses are calculated on a collective basis in respect of losses that have been
incurred but not yet identified on loans that are subject to individual assessment for impairment and for
homogeneous groups of loans that ate not considered individually significant. If no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset. it is included in a collecrive assessment
for impairment with other assets with similar risk characteristics.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference berween the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted ac the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The catrying amount of the
asset is reduced, the loss being recognised in the income statement.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a financial assec reflects the cash
fows that may result from scheduled interest payments, principal repayments, or other payments due,
including liquidation of collateral where available. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgments about a counterparty’s financial sicuation and the fair value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees in the Group’s favour. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy
and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are reviewed by the Credit Committee on a quarterly
basis. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and the timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimares and actual loss experience.

Collectively assessed credit risk allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of claims with similar
cconomic characteristics where there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired claims
but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows
are escimared on the basis of historical loss experience. These estimates are subject to regular review and
adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions thar did not affect the period on which the historical loss
expetience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.




Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

I Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The accuracy of the allowances and provisions made depends on how accurately the Group estimares
future cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and provisions and the model assumptions and
parameters used in determining collective allowances, While this necessarily involves judgment, the Group
believes thar its allowances and provisions are reasonable and supportable.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment foss, interest income is recognised using the original effective interest rate which was used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
to an objective event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment Joss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
for loan impairment. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Recoveries
received in respect of loans previously written off are recorded as a decrease in the impairment losses on
loans and advances and recorded in the income statement in the year in which the recovery was made.

Impairment of available-for-sale assets
Available-for-sale assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence thar a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

For equity shares classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered evidence of impaitment. If any such evidence exists, the cumularive
loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Recognised impairment losses on
equity shares classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through the income statement, but are
recorded in equity.

Impairment of available-for-sale debt securities is based on the same criteria as for all other financial
assets. If in a subsequent petiod the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in the income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income stacement.

The loss recognised in the income statement is the difference berween the acquisition cost and current
fair valtue, less any impairment loss on thar financial asset previously recognised in the income statement.

Debt/equity classification

Fram 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005

Under UK GAAP a financial instrument is classified as a liability when the substance of a transaction s
such that there is an obligation to deliver economic benefits, except in the case of preference shares,
which are required to be described as shareholder funds under the Companies Act.

N M Rudbschild & Sons Limited
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Debt/equity classification (continued)

From I April 2005

Under TFRS the critical feature in differentiating a debt instrument from an equity instrument is the
existence of a contractual obligation of the Group to deliver cash (or another financial asser) to another entity.
Where there is no such contractual obligation, the Group will classify the financial instrument as equity,

otherwise it will be classified as a liability and carried at amortised cost. Under IFRS the legal form of

the transaction takes precedence over its economic substance in determining how it should be classified.

Goodwill and intangible assets

i

L.

Goodwill in an associate or subsidiary represents the excess, at the date of acquisition, of an
acquisition’s cost over the fair value of the Group's share of net identifiable assets acquired.
Identifiable intangible assets are those which can be sold separately or which arise from legal rights
regardless of whether those rights are separate.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently when circumstances indicate that its carrying amount is too
high. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the putposes of impairment testing. If the
net present values of the cash-generating units’ forecast cash flows are insufficient to suppore their
carrying value, then the goodwill is impaired. Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised in
the income statement and are not reversed.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Intangible assets comprise acquired intellectual property rights, which are carried at cost less
accumulared amortisation and impairment losses. The costs are amortised on the basis of an
estimated useful life of 10 years. Intellectual property rights are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If such evidence exists, an
impairment test is performed.

Property, plant and cquipment

All property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulared depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Land is net depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to wrire

down the cost of assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Computer equipment 3-5 years
Clars 3-5 years
Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years

Leasehold improvements  5-15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These gains

and losses are recognised in the income statement.
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I, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date, or more frequently where events or changes in circumstances dicrate, property,
plant and equipment is assessed for indications of impairment. If such indicarions are present, these assets
are subject to an impairment review. If impaired, the carrying values of assets are written down by the
amount of any impairment and the loss is recognised in the income statement in the period in which it
occurs. A previously recognised impairment loss relating to a fixed asser may be reversed when a change
in circumstances leads to a change in the estimates used to determine the fixed asset’s recoverable
amount, The carrying amount of the fixed asset is only increased up to the amounc that it would have
been had the original impairment not been recognised.

Finance and operating leases

Where the group is the lessor

Finanee leases

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable, The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised
as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the rerm of the lease using the net investment
method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Operating leases

Assets acquired for use by customers under operating lease agreements, including initial direct costs
incurred by lessors in negotiating an operating lease, are capitalised and included in the relevant category
of fixed assets. Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis to write the value of the asset down to the
expected residual value over a period consistent with other assets of a similar type.

Operating lease income and the initial direct costs are then recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Where the Group is the lessee

The Group has entered into operating leases in respect of property, plant and equipment. The toral
payments made under operating Jeases are charged 1o the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original
maturities of less than three months, including cash and non-restricted balances with central banks,
certificates of deposits and loans and advances to banks.

Pensions

The Group’s post-retirement benefit arrangements are described in note 24. The Group operates 2 number
of pension and other post-retirement benefit schemes, both funded and unfunded, and of the defined
benefit and defined contribution types. For defined contribution schemes, the contribution payable in
respect of the accounting period is recognised in the income statement.

N M Redlseinld & Sons Limiled
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I Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Pensions (continued)

The defined benefit schemes are accounted for using the option permitted by the amendment made to
1AS 19 Employee Benefits, which the Group has adopted early, whereby actuarial gains and losses are
recognised outside profit or loss and presented in the statement of recognised income and expense. The
amount recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes is the difference berween
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, and the fair value of the plans
assess, if any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The principal assumptions are set out in note 24. The obligation’s present
value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the bencefits will be paid and thar have
terms o maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liabiliry.

Share based payments

The Group has entered into a cash-settled share based payment transaction for the acquisition of a
minority interest in a subsidiary company from employees of that subsidiary.

The fair value of the services provided by the minority shareholders is measured as the change in the fair
value of options over the minority shareholdings. The fair value is determined by reference to the valuation
of the business and the terms and conditions of the options. The cost of the services is recognised at each
reporting date and is re-measured at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, Any vesting rights
are taken into account when determining the rights to payment.

Taxation

Tax payable on profits is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
that are recognised in equity.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
and Jaws that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised, or the deferred tax
liability is sectled.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property, plant and equipment, revaluation
of certain financial instruments including derivative contracts, provisions for post-retirement benefits and

tax losses carried forward.

Deferred tax assets, including the tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward, are only
recognised where it is probable rhat future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is not provided on temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries and associates, unless the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by a chird parey and it is probable that the difference will reverse in the foreseeahle future.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared by the
Company's shareholders at the Annual General Meeting or, in the case of interim dividends, when they
are paid.
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Fiduciary activities i
The Group acts as custedian and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or placing of

assets on behalf of customers. These assets and the income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised only when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resule
of past events. In addition, it must be probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to
setdle che obligation, and it must also be possible to make a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

The Group recognises provisions in respect of onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by one or more uncertain future events not wholly with the Group’s control, or present obligations that
are not recognised either because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to sertle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed unless the possibility of a transfer of economic benefits is remote.

2. Transition to IFRS

2.1  Application of IFRS |

As stated in note 1, the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 are the first annual
financial statements that are prepared in accordance with IFRS, The Group has applied the provisions of
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. The Group’s IFRS transition date is 1 April 2004, and the Group prepared its opening
TFRS balance sheet at that date. In its transition to IFRS, the Group has applied the mandatory exceptions
and certain of the optional exemptions from full retrospective application of IFRS set out in IFRS 1.

2.2 Exemptions from full retrospective application of IFRS
The Group applied the following exemptions permitted by IFRS 1:

Exemption from restatement of comparatives for 1AS 32 and TAS 39

The Group has elected not to apply IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and JAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to the comparative figures for the year ended
31 March 2005. 1AS 32 and IAS 39 were adopted with effect from 1 April 2005 and their impact is
reflected through adjustments to shareholders’ equity as at 1 April 2005, as set out in section 2.4 below.
Comparative figures for financial instruments have been prepared in accordance with UK generally
accepred accounting principles ("UK GAAP?).

N A Rolhsehikd & Soms Limited
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2. Transition to IFRS (continued)

2.2 Exemptions from full retrospective application of IFRS (continued)

Business combinations
The Group has elected to not apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations retrospectively to past business
combinations.

Cumulative translation differences
The cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at 1 April 2004.

Property, plant and equipment
The Group has elected to treat che fair value of certain leasehold improvements included in property,
plant and equipment as their deemed cost at the IFRS transition date of 1 April 2004.

Share based payments
The Group has applied an exemption so that share options granted prior to 7 November 2002 are not
accounted for.

2.3 Reconciliations between UK GAAP and 1FRS

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of the transition to IFRS:

i Sharcholders’ equity as at 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005 - excluding the effect of IAS 32 and
IAS 39, which the Group has adopted with effect from 1 April 2005.
| April 2004 31 March 2005

Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Shareholders’ equity — UK GAAP 317.675 317,675 321,394 321,394
IFRS adjustmeﬁgul‘:gl;ll'nareholders’ equity S ‘ a
Pensicns {46596y  (44487)  (83516)  (60410)
Tax effect of pensions adiustments T T 3636 13346 18550 18123

(32560)  (31,141) | (44.966)  (42.287)

Dividends 500 000 12500 12500
Proper‘typ!ant and ltelﬁuiblr:nel;\t written down to deerﬁedlcos;n (I 3 | 20) . (.I 3>!20) . (1 3..I 200 (13,120
Léggi}{éfees' bbb e ST fubalii - ('|2'6')' S (97) SR
Sﬁgrebasea amens N e e e (335) . (1258) )
bép}eciation ‘ e . (220) e 3 |‘344.
Reduchon |n .c.a.r.ry“m;g. value lc;f linvestrﬁerr'utrmrjointrventures L (3567) G
Reduction in carying value of subsdianes  —  (79.690) L (B2647)
Reduction in carmying value of associated Lmde.r{akmgsm L {1,554} 7 {1.520)
Othér i o : i 7 -
b;w.d.e.nd.s l'efeivabie 7 E 2 2
Reversal of goodwill amaortisation o - .53.1. o
Tax effect of adstments - 3416 3312 2999 2950
Minority mterest 56 79 o
Shareholders’ equity — IFRS 279,386 196915 279,578 198,245
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2. Transition to IFRS (continued)

2.3 Reconciliations between UK GAAP and IFRS (continued)

ii. Income Statement for the year o 31 March 2005

Group
£'000

Company
£'000

Profit for the financial year — UK GAAP 28930

25796

Atcributable to

- Eauity holders of the parent company - _ - 28,283 7

— Minonty interest 647

L2796

28,930

25,796

IFRS adjustments
Pensions o

Goodwill N 7 _ ) Y
Leasing 29

Foreign exchange translation 234
Depreciation 1,533

Joint ventures ) -
Valuation of employee share options (953)

cher , - 159

Tax eﬁ'ect'

Profic for the financial year — IFRS 30,495

Attributable to
~ Equity holders of the parent company

- Minority interest G
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Transition to IFRS {continued)

2.4 Effect of transition to 1AS 32 and IAS 39 at | April 2005

31 March Derivatives ! April
2005  Reclass- Fair  Effective Loan & Hedge 2005
IFRS  ifications Value Interest Impairment Accounting IFRS
Group £000 £000  £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances al central banks I.SI & - - - - 1511
Denvatwe ﬁnancnai ms‘truments . o 63.4I4 S L 4035 ...... ;J’l2.449
Loans and advances to banks o 446 280 .......... - - - - L 446 280'
stocustomers 2258609 woissny L @arey 1469 3195 2065010
Debt and equity securities 24333190276 6966 (1578) D 978 24634980
mvestmems in assocnated undertakmgs 8, 823. - N B 8 823
Intangible assets 3480 - 3 480
erty, plant an.a equlpment . o .I. .I 408 . - - - o I‘408
Deferred tax assets T seaer Tl Qose) 2395 1760 1633 40160
Other assets Tleise  (e733y - - U9 121979
Total assets 5,396,447 (537) 4876  (5,557) 3229 7621 5,406,080
Liabilities
Dreposits by banks 1,665,648 (59 - - (154) 1665435
e | rvpen e e (|25)' . 3848|0”
Derivative financial instruments ‘ Teiess - o e 75453
Debt securities in issue. "i SO?SBN Cissy T T a0 | 505 588
Subordlnated iwabllrlles - . 230 980“ . .‘(230‘980)7 Lo - o -
other |.aqu|es e e en R (98)99“6
Cument i 11ab;igt|e§ S 4383‘. e R 4383
Accruals and deferred income ) I59 755 5 ) ‘ 35 777777 - (2407) ' IS7.338
Total liabilities 5,113,222 (231,517} - 35 - 11,433 4,893,173
Shareholders’ equity
Share capltal SOOOO - - - - SOOGO
Retained camings 29377 - S omssly 3152 (355n) 12339
Translatlon resewe. - ZOI - L - - 201
Avallable for sale reserve - - .'1..87'6 - - 1876
Hedgmg reserve - - - - - (256) (256)
Total shareholders’ equity 179,578 - 4,87  (5.581) 3,152 (3,808) 278,117
Minorlty interests 3647 230980 Coany 7 (3) 234690
Total equity and liabilities 5,396,447 (537} 4876 (5.557) 3229 7,622 5.406,080
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2. Transition to IFRS (continued)

2.4 Effect of transition to 1AS 32 and IAS 39 at [ April 2005 (continued)

31 March Derivatives I April
2005  Reclass- Fair  Effective Loan & Hedge 2005
IFRS  ifications  Value Interest Impairment Accounting {FRS
Company £000 £'000  £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Assets
Cash and batances at central banks 27 - - - - - 27
Denvatwe fi nancqal mstruments L 60790 ...... - - 3.372 ...... &4, Eél 7
Loans and advances to banks l 2462I [ h - - - L mi46 21
Loans and advances to customrs'_»rs o I 4I979I - (|90,I52) : - “(4.68‘6) - 459 1554 i226 966 ”
Debt and equity securities. 178035 o200 4551 (1578 - 978 198086
Shares in submdtary unde kings 34 786 o - R 34.786‘ 7
Investments oated ur et‘takmgs 7 303 o - P - S 7' 303 )
\nvestments in joint ventures 29 - - - - ) 429
Propert)f plant and eqmpmentl o 3570. l - - - 3.5707
Deferred tax assets ST U ess U (3es) 1889 2063 1359 34800
Other assets . Tle2604  (60898) - : a9y 99487
Total assets 3,621,611 (60) 3185 (4375 2,522 S.044  3,697.927
Liabiliies
Deposits by banks 1 466270 - - - (213) 1466057
Due u ”"; 073 560'" Tl _ o (zg)m ’ | 073 532 )
Denvatlve fnanoal mstr‘umenlswm o T sesos ~ - - iDSSS T e 773 -
Debt secuntles in issue T asoses - - - - (33)" U as0562
230980 (230980) : - - - -
137747 (56954) s - S 98 809
Cunem e l.ab,m.es”mmm”m i o - R 3 T
hecroals and defered income 18123 (4 - 35 - e 175868
Total liabilities 3,493,366  (231.040) - 35 - 8217 3,270,578
Shareholders’ equity
Share caputal 50.000 - - - - - 501 OOO
Retained eammgs ‘ 148245 - - (.11‘410} 2;52.2. ‘(]7?_,9'16) 434I| .
Translatlon reserve o - - - ~ . - -
Avaiable-for-sale reserve - S8 - - 3,185
Hedging resem;é ....... - - - ~ - (227) 227y
Total shareholders' equity 198,245 - 3185 (4410 2,522 (3.173) 196, 369
Mrority intarest D Jwese - - - - 230980
Total equity and Yiabilities 369164 (60) 3,185  (4,375) 2522 5044 1697927

wl
J

[
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Transition to IFRS (continued)

2.5 Differences between UK GAAP and IFRS

The significant differences between the Group's accounting policies under UK GAAP and under [FRS
are described below, together with a description of the impact of the changes in accounting policy.

Consolidation and presentation

Under UK GAAP, securitisation and other off-balance sheet financing transactions were presented in the
balance sheet with linked presentation as permitted by FRS 5, whereby the non-recourse finance was
deducted from the securitised assets on the balance sheet. Under IFRS, such linked presentation is not
permitted, and the assets and non-recourse finance are presented gross on the balance sheet. The effect
of this change is to increase both total assets and total liabilicies by £688 million at 1 April 2004 and by
£590 million at 31 March 2005.

Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings

In accordance with the alternative accounting rules allowed in the Companies Act, the Company’s
investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings were stated at the Company’s share of ner asset
value in its individual financial statements under UK GAAR. Under IFRS, these investments are carried
at cost in accordance with IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and TAS 28 Investments
in Associates. At 1 April 2004, the carrying value of the Company’s investments in subsidiary and
associated undertakings reduced by £81,244,000, with a corresponding reduction in the revaluation
reserve. At 31 March 2005, the equivalent adjustment was £84,167,000. Associated undertakings are
included in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method; losses in excess of the Group’s
interest in associates are not recognised.

Joint ventures

Certain joint arrangements have been classified as jointdy controlled entities under IAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures. Under UK GAAP, the Company recognised its share of income, expenses, assets and liabilities
arising from these joint ventures in its individual accounts; under IFRS, the Company’s investment in
these joint ventures is carried at cost. The jointly controlled entities are included in the consplidated
accounts using the proportionate consolidation method. The effect of this change on the Company’s profit
or loss and balance sheets is negligible.

Goodwill

Under UK GAAP, goodwill arising on the purchase of subsidiary undertakings is capitalised and amortised
over its useful cconomic life. Under IFRS, such goodwill is not amortised; it is tested annually for
impairment. At 1 April 2004, carrying value of goodwill was carried forward without adjustment at its
UK GAAP carrying value, being deemed cost after testing for impairment. The effect of the reversal of
goodwill amortisation in the year to 31 March 2005 was to increase profits of the Group by £531,000.
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(forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Transition to IFRS {continued)

Property plant and equipment

On initial recognition, IAS 16 Accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment requires an entity to measure
properry, plant and equipment at cost and subsequently to measure it at its depreciated cost. At the date
of transition to IFRS, IFRS 1 allows an entity to measure an item of property, plant and equipment at fair
value and to use that fair value as the asser’s deemed cost ar that date. The Company elected to measure
certain leasehold improvements at fair value at 1 April 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, which
resulted in a decrease in rerained earnings of the Group and the Company of £13,120,000 (£9,808,000
net of tax). Because of a reduced depreciation charge, the effect at 31 March 2005 was to increase the
Group and Company’s profit by £1,344,000 (£1,022,000 net of tax) and to reduce retained earnings by
£11,776,000 (£8,786,000 net of tax).

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

TAS 19 Employee Benefits requires defined benefit pension fund assets to be measured ar fair value at the
balance sheet date, and liabilities to be measured under current actuarial assumptions using the projected
unit credit method, discounted at the rate of interest on a high quality corporate bond. The ner liability
is recognised on the balance sheer. The Group has elected to adopt early the amendments to LAS 19
Employee Benefits: Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures and will recognise all acruarial
gains and losses immediately in the Starement of Recognised Income and Expense. Under UK GAAT,
pension costs were recognised on a systematic basis over employees’ remaining service lives; defined benefit
pension liabilities were not recognised on the balance sheer.

At 1 April 2004 the Group recognised a defined benefit pension liability of £46,596,000 (£32,960,000
net of deferred tax) and at 31 March 2005 a liability of £63,516,000 {£44,966,000 nex of deferred tax).
The Company recognised a liability of £44,487,000 (£31,141,000 net of deferred tax} at 1 April 2004
and a liability of £60,410,000 (£42,287,000 net of deferred tax) ar 31 March 2005.

The pension cost in the income statement is determined differently under UK GAAP and IFRS, and the
transition to IFRS resulted in a reduction of £571,000 (£375,000 net of tax) in the Group’s pension cost
for the year to 31 March 2005. The Company’s pension cost reduced by £724,000 (£507,000 net of tax)
in the year to 31 Masch 2005,

Share based payments

TFRS 2 requires cash-setcled share based payment transactions to be recorded as a liabiliy measured at
fair value on the balance sheet. As the employees render service, the cost of that service is measured as the
change in fair value of the liability at each reporting date and at the date of serlement, and is recognised

in the income statement.

The impact on the Group’s retained earnings at 1 April 2004 of recording share based payment transactions
in the balance sheet under [FRS was a decrease of £335,000. The Group's lability increased by a further
£953,000 at 31 March 2003 with a corresponding charge to the income statement.

Dividends

IAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date does not permit the recognition of a liability in respect of
dividends declared after the balance sheet date; accordingly, the liability for dividends proposed ac the
balance sheet date has been reversed, increasing reported sharcholders’ equity of the Group and the
Company by £5,000,000 at 1 April 2004 and by £12,500,000 at 31 March 2005. Under IFRS, dividends

receivable are recognised only when the Group’s right to recognise payment is established.

N M Ruthschuld & Sons Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

2. Transition to [FRS (continued)

Leasing
Under IAS 17 Leases, finance lease income is recognised so as to give a constant rate of return on the net
investment in the lease without taking account of tax payments and receipts.

Under UK GAAFP, fees charged by lessors are recorded in the income statement when they fall due, either
at the beginning or end of the finance lease agreement. However, under 1AS 17, fees charged for
negotiating finance leases are included in the measurement of the finance lease receivable, and are
recognised in the income statement on the same basis as finance lease income. At 1 April 2004, the effect
of recognising fees charged on an acruarial before rax method was to reduce Group finance lease
receivables by £126,000 with a corresponding reduction in the Group’s retained earnings. The effect on
the Group’s income statement for the year to 31 March 2005 was negligible.

Under UK GAAP operating lease fees charged by lessors are recorded in the income statement when they
are receivable; under IFRS, such fees are spread on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. The impact
of this change in timing of fee recognition on shareholders’ equity of the Group ar 1 April 2004 and in
the income statement of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2005 was negligible.

Depreciation

Assets held by lessors under operating leases have been depreciated using the reverse annuity method
under UK GAAP Under TAS 16, these assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis; the impact of the
change in depreciation method under IAS 16 at 1 April 2004 was to reduce the carrying value of the
Group’s tangible assets by £220,000, with a corresponding reduction in retained eatnings. The effect in
the year to 31 March 2005 was to reduce the charge for depreciation in the income statement by
£189,000 and to increase the carrying value of tangible fixed assets by the same amount.

Deferred tax

UK GAAP requires deferred tax to be provided for all material timing differences between accounting
profit and taxable profit except where such timing differences are permanent or are not expected to reverse
in future periods. Under TFRS, deferred tax is provided in full in respect of all temporary differences, being
the difference between an asset’s carrying value and its tax base,

The impact of adopting [FRS was to increase the deferred tax assets of the Group at 1 April 2004 by
£17,052,000 and £21,549,000 at 31 March 2005. On the adoption of IAS 39 at 1 April 2005, the Group’s
deferred rax assets increased by a further £3,698,000. The Company’s deferred tax assets increased by
£16,658,000 at 1 April 2004 and £21,113,000 at 31 March 2005. Ac t April 2005, the Company's
deferred tax assets increased by a further £3,945,000. The majority of the increase in the deferred tax
assets of the Group and Company are a resule of recognising the defined benefit pension liability on the
balance sheet under IFRS.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries within the Group determined in accordance with 1AS 21
The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates is different from the local currency previously determined
under UK GAAP This change in functional currency resulted in foreign exchange translation gains of
£234,000 that were recognised directly in equity under UK GAAP being recognised instead in the
Group income statement under IFRS.
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2. Transition to [FRS {continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued) 15"9T
Transtation gains and losses en foreign currency operations are recognised in a separate component of o
equity under IFRS. The Group has elected, under IFRS 1, not to apply retrospectively IAS 21 to such
translation gains and losses, and che cumulative rranslation gains and losses at 1 April 2004 have been set
to zero. At 31 March 2005, foreign currency gains and losses of £201,000 were reported in a separate

component of the Group’s equity, having been included in retained earnings under UK GAAP.

Financial instruments ~ classification and measurement

TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement requires financial instruments to be classified
into categories which determine their accounting treatment. Adoption of IAS 39 has resulted in a number
of changes to the accounting treatment of the Group’s financial instruments.

Debt and equity securities and certain loan assets which were carried at amortised cost under UK GAAP
have been classified as available-for-sale under [FRS. Under IFRS, the assets are measured at fair value in
the balance sheet, with changes to fair value being recorded directly in equity. Ae 1 April 20053, the effective
date of IAS 39 adoption, the impact of this change in accounting policy was to increase the carrying value
of debt and equity securities of the Group and Company by £6,966,000 and £4,551,000 respectively.

Derivatives and hedge acconnting

Under UK GAAP, derivative financial instruments used in trading activities are recorded in the balance
sheet at fair value with all gains and losses recorded in net trading income. Derivatives used to hedge
exposures in the non-trading book are accounted for on the same basis as the hedged exposure; under UK
GAAP, the Group accounted for certain interest rate swaps used for hedging purposes on an accruals basis.

1AS 39 requires all derivative financial instruments 1o be carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value, excluding changes relating to derivatives that are pare of an effective hedging relationship,
are recorded in net trading income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives used as cashflow hedges are
recorded in equity. Where a fair value hedging relationship exists, changes in the fair value of the derivative
and the hedged item are recognised in the income statement as net interest income. Fair value gains and
losses on the ineffective portion of fair value and cashflow hedges are recognised in net trading income.

Certain derivative assets and liabilities accounted for as hedges under UK GAAP do not meet the stringent
criteria for hedge accounting set our in 1AS 39. The assets and liabilities, previously accounted for on an
accruals basis, were recognised in the balance sheet at fair value at 1 April 2005, with a decrease in rthe
Group's and Company’s retained earnings of £3,552,000 and £2,946,000 respectively. Derivative assets
and liabilities qualifying as cash flow hedges were also recognised in the balance sheet at 1 April 2005,
resulting in a decrease in equity of £256,000 for the Group and £227,000 for the Company. The changes
in fair value on derivatives held in cash flow hedging relationships are recorded in a separate reserve in equity.

N A1 Ruthachild & Sons Lianlled
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2. Transition to IFRS {continued)

Loan impaitment

Under UK GAAP, specific provisions are made where the repayment of identified loans is in doubt, and
reflect estimates of the amount needed to reduce the carrying value of the asset to the estimated net realisable
value. The general bad debt provision augments specific provisions and relates to the inherent risk of losses
which, although not separately identified, are known from experience to be present in any loan portfolio.

Under IFRS, impairment losses are recognised only where there is objective evidence of impairment at
the balance sheet date as a result of one or more loss events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset. Impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying value of the asset and the present
value of future cashflows discounted ac the original effective interest rate. Impairment is measured
individually for assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively for other assets.
The adoption of TAS 39 resulted in a decrease of £1,469,000 in [oan loss provisions at the Group level
and £459,000 at the Company level.

Effective interest method

Under IAS 39, the amortised cost of a financial asset and liability is calculated using the effective interest
rate method, which allocates interest income and expense over the relevant period by applying the
effective interest rate to the carrying amount of the asset or liabiliry,

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows of a financial
instrument to its net carrying amount. The effective interest rate method results in fees that are an integral
part of the yield on a financial asset being recognised over the expected life of that asset.

Under UK GAAP, certain types of loan-related fees are recognised when receivable, usually at the inception
or termination of a loan. Under [FRS, these fees are included in the effective vield on the loan and are
hence recognised in the income statement over the expected life of the loan. The change in the timing
of fee recognition resulted in a reduction in the Group’s and Company’ retained earnings at 1 April 2005
of £5,581,000 and £4,410,000 respectively.

Cash flow statement
The Greup and Company are not exempt from preparing a cash flow statement under IFRS.
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3. Financial Risk Management

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments | 61

The use of financial instruments, including derivarives, is fundamental to the Group’s banking and
treasury activities. The Group provides a range of lending products to its clients and funds these activities
by means of deposit-taking, medium term note issuance and other borrowings. The Group invests in
debe securities in order to profit from the interest margin over its cost of funds and to provide a portfolio
of liquid assets to assist in the management of liquidity risk and to hedge forecast cashflows, Further
information on derivative contracts and the Group's hedging strategies is set out in note 12. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to meet clients’ requirements, for proprietary trading and to manage
its exposure to interest rate and currency risk. The key risks arising from the Group’s activities involving

financial instruments are as follows:

~ Marker risk - exposure to changes in market variables such as interest rates, currency exchange rates
and equity prices.

— Credit risk — the risk of loss arising from client or counterparty default.

- Liquidity and funding risk — the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as they fall
due, or thar it is unable to borrow in the market at an acceptable price to fund its commitments.

The identification, measurement and containment of risk is integral to the management of the Group's
business. Risk policies and procedures are regularly updated to meet changing business requirements.

3.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from all exposures to clients and counterparties relating to the Group’s lending, trading and
investment activities. The Credit Commmittee sets limits, reviews concentrations and makes recommendations
on credit decisions to the Executive Committee, Credit risk limits are set, where appropriate, in respect
of exposures to individual clients or counterparties, to industry sectors and to countries.

Exposure to credit risk is managed by derailed analysis of client and counterparty creditworthiness prior
to entering into an exposure, and by continued monitoring thereafter. A significant proportion of the
Group’s lending exposures is secured on property or other assets; the Group monitors the value of any
collateral obtained. The Group also uses netting agreements o restrict credit exposure to counterparties.
For internal monitoring purposes, credit exposure on loans and debr securities is measured as the principal
amount ourstanding plus accrued interest. Credit exposure on derivatives is measured as the current
replacement value plus an allowance for the potential change in replacement value.

A1 Ruthsehild & Soms Limiled
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(forming part of the Financial Statements)

3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.2 Credit risk {continued)
The following table discloses the maximum exposure to credit risk on assets and off balance sheert items
by geographic area:
Loans Derivative  Debt and
to Financial Equity Other Commitments/

Customers  Instruments  Securities Assets Total Guarantees
At 31 March 2006 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Group
United Kingdomn 1,162,789 7755 1025380 192303 2392207 173,358
Eorope CUe15y 7244 1601009 105593 2335383 215217
US and Canada 26614 Tags o282 98m 439757 162876
Australasia 1039 B 9340 742 0489 2559
South-East Asia 37,121 B g0 793 3
Other countries 118600 2120 46889 1008 168617 3652
Total 2,077.020 17646 3073520 310288  5478,474 603.033
Company
United Kingdom 943258 7698 91083% 165035 2026827 870470
Euope 203989 3455 1302079 72580 1592103 154812
USand Carada N 229429 9789 310670 162852
Australasia 7550 318 08 e 53443 25092
South-East Asia - o S s s s
Other countries 69505 2120 45989 866 118880 2850
Total 1,306,150 13315 2533516 249,157 4,102,138 1,237.887
3.3 Market visk

Market risk arises as a result of the Group’s activiries in interest rate, currency and equity markets and
comprises interest rate, foreign exchange and equity position risk. During the year, exposure to market
risk has continued to be small in relation to capital, as trading activities have been focused on servicing
client requirements rather than on proprietary risk-raking,

Limits on market risk exposure are set by the Executive Committee using the value at risk methodelogy
described below. Monitoring of market risk limits and determination of trading profits are undertaken
independently of the dealing area. Whilst value at risk is central to the communication and control of
risk, it is complemented by other measures and controls. These include stress testing, which estimates
the losses that could occur when markets behave in unusually volatile ways and with little liquidity. The
key assumptions undetlying the calculation of value at risk are sex out below:. Marker risk in the Company's
subsidiary undertakings N M Rothschild & Sons (CI) Limited and the Five Arrows Finance Limited
group is measured on a gap basis and is not included in the figures below. The market risk arising in the
Company’s other subsidiary undertakings is immaterial.
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.3 Market risk {continued) I_f’;
12 months to 31 March 2006
Average High Low
Company £'000 £'000 £000
Interest rate risk 320 1135 547
Fomgn exchangensk B R e e .
Total value at risk 925 1,152 548

The following disclosures were made in accordance with the requirements of UK GAAP for the year

ended 31 March 2005:

The Company's consolidared market risk comprises:

Non

Trading  Trading Toual

2005 2005 2005

£000 £000 £000

At 31 March i6 720 715
H'ghest L ST - e Vosyrese rie”
G . . o . S B B
Av-er:age e e e e T

The market risk figures above are derived from weekly figures covering the year to 31 March. Market risk
in the Company’s subsidiary undertakings, N M Rothschild & Sons (CI} Limited and the Five Arrows
Finance Limited group, is measured on a gap basis. The market risk arising in the other subsidiaries of
the Company is immaterial.

Market risk is measured daily using a sensitivity-based value at risk approach, which determines the effect
of changes in market price factors, including currency prices, interest rates and volatilities, on positions.
Shifts in market price factors and correlations are calculated weekly, or more frequently in turbulent markets,
using the industry standard of 99 per cent probability over a ten day holding period for all risks except
currency position tisk, which is measured using a 99 per cent probability over a one day helding period.

The main assumption used in the calculation is that price factors are normally distributed. This is a
common assumption in value at risk calculations but is known to be tenuous particualarly for interest rates
and volaiilities and is one of the reasons for the use of a high probability over a long holding period. While
value at risk is the principal means of measuring, limiting and communicaring risk, it is complemented
by a number of other measurement methods and controls. We also measure risk using 99 per cent probability
over a one day holding period; on this basis, rotat consolidated marker risk at 31 March 2005 was £233,000.
The Group's approach to market risk management is described above.

Foreign exchange and interest rate contracts are used for hedging purposes wichin the trading book. The
maturity of such hedges ranges from short dates to greater than five years. These hedges are accounted
for using the accounting policies described in note 1.

B A Ronliscbild & Soms Dimifed
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3. Financial Risk Management {continued)

64 3.4  Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Executive Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by currency
and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. The table below summarises exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk at 31 March 2006. Included in the table are financial assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts {apart from derivatives, which are included at their notional principal value), categorised

by currency.

£ Uss € Other Totat
At 31 March 2006 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks t5 | g - 24
Loans and advances to banks - 24351 29502 7634 19363 81250
Denvatnve fnanmal mstrumen‘rs 7 410,584 7.30 208 282 I48 . 39 070 . 962 OIO .
Loans and advances e customersl S lll 3&.757!. . 317,154 ‘ 377 770 4.525 . 2077 020.
Debt and equity securities T 207354 547577 1313070 5419 3073520
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 1034636 563670 521,700 7250 2127256
Due to customers ' 870609 327843 204263 35510 1448205
Derivative financial instruments® 196642 156077 607,50 25032 98450
Debt securites in issue  ama0r 36170 557968 - 1033539
Subordinated liabilites 99470 43062 89664 - 23229
Company
Assets
Cash and ba{ances at centrai banks 5 | 8 - 24
Loans and advances 1o banks . R ‘* 2'.328 N 4576 5447 3l 35'
Denvative fnanaal instruments™® - - 7097 7 33.579 IS,SSZ o .9 6 I4 - 65 852”
Loans andr éannces torcustomers - | 032 829 7 222468 49,789 ) ) I 064 l, 306 ISOM
Debt and equity securites - 962814 442866 1123294 4542 2533516
Liabilites
Deposits by banks 975048 519458 51289 1492 2,008,889
Due to customers 338363 91764 574393 19943 1014463
Den vative financial mstruments S l 7. 536 . 30.287 24 730. 79.608 72,161
Debt secunhes |n |ssue - . 335 000. . .36,.1.70 . - - 371,170
Subordinated labilities . 99470 43162 89664 -~ 23229

* notional value

N v Rothachifd & Sois Lisniled
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.4  Currengy risk {continued) 65

The following disclosures were made in accordance with the requirements of UK GAAP for the year

ended 31 March 2005:

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings, N M Rothschild & Sons (CI) Limited and the Five
Arrows Finance Limited group, hold currency exposures in the non-trading book. At 31 March 2005,
non-trading book currency positions arising on monetary assets and liabilities, after taking account of
off-balance sheet hedges, comprise:
2005
£'000
1,394
39
D
90
e o et e o e
o ol =
TR s , e e ~

3.5 Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk thar the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marker interest rates. The Executive Committee
sets limits on the level of interest rate risk, using the value ar risk methodology described above, and by
setting limits on interest rate exposures by time band.

N M Rolivsdilld & Sons Limited
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

66 3.5 Interest rate risk (continued)

The table below summarises exposure to interest rate risk and effective interest rates for monetary financial
instruments not carried at fair value through profit and loss. Included in the table are the Group's
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the eatlier of
contractual repricing or maturity date.

Up Non-

Effective to | 1-3 3-12 I-5  Over 5 interest

interest month  menths months years years  bearing Total
At 31 March 2006 rate % £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Group
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - - 24 24
Loans and advances to barks 367 65207 15547 - . 4% 81250
.berivauve,ﬁna,ndal mSmeentS LT A e e i e e
- Hedging* Q.71) 442,723 94,125 (21,412) (384357) (131.379) 2355 2355
CTadings - 69626 26346 9578 (105550) s 15291
Loans anc advances to customers 682 89339 382581 /2693 17618 164965 (13233 2077020

Debl and equity securities 431 777381 1388681 780937 111347 7802 3073520

28361 229014

Other assets o - 653 - - - -

Total 7248986 1907280 942.096 98058 41,388 240666 5478474
Liabitities

Deposits by banks A1l 1555241 380267 191,882 - A3y 212725
Due to customers 416 1182321 95628 144275 20571 5417 — 1448225
Dl 182329 95628 14 L2057 A LT A

~ Hedging® 029 (3162) (4779) 42011 (14070) o 22884 22884
PN 0 S
Debt securities missve 387 289400 744138 - - N T E Rk
Subordinated liabliies 589 — 104619 57549 -~ 75100 (1972)  23229%
T T T T e e
e o e BT LT
Total 2861749 1,252,893 556613 9650 80527 629,191 5478474
Gap (613.763) 654,387 385483 1,557 (39.139) (388,525)
Cumulative gap (613763) 40,624 426,107 427,664 388,525 -

* notional value

The figures above do not demonstrate exposure to particular interest rates as the assets and liabilities
included above have been consolidated across all currencies.

N M Rothschild & Suns Linted
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67"

3. Financial Risk Management {continued)
3.5 Interest rate risk (continued)
Up Non-

Effective to | 1-3 3-12 1.5 Over5 interest

interest month  months  months years years bearing Total
At 31 March 2006 rate % £000 £000  £000  £000  £000  £'000 £000
Company
Assets
Cash and bafances al central banks - - - - - - 24 24
Lo and advances 1o banks 445 30938 - - B TE N T
i A S e T 2 :
~ hedging™ 080)  Blele  BGS563 (19919) (117.986) (24244) 1335 1335
- tading® TUUUTHe300 11500 10000 (67800) - 11980 11980
Loars and advances 1o customers 673 6|4.53?___i_'_4os,e45'mi"éé',dslo 119044 28227 (I5485) 1306150
Debt and equity securities 436 605126 1156811 666911 91600 7802 5236 2533516
R e L R B - e i
Total i,378519 1655519 810,072 24958  [1.785 221285 4,102,138
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 413 1405098 367604 233721 2600 0 (134) 2008889
Due to customers 360 401537 590193 22733 - . 1014463
o AT e LA b i Las
~ hedging* 034  (43)62) (5930) 43)62 5930 - 9744 9744
rading' UL 43516 (66980) 1308% 90000 - 9893 9893
S e msooe taim g T,
Subordinated liabilities 589 - ST 75000 (a972) 23229
Otver i - ST ke s
Shareholders equity - - 200550 200550
Total 1804557 1,175676 478061 98530 75100 470214 4,102,138
Gap (426,038) 479843 332011 (73572) (63.315) (248.929)
Curmulative gap (426038) 53805 385816 312244 248929 -

* notional value

The figures above do not demonstrate exposure to particular interest rates as the assets and liabilities

included above have been consolidated across all currencies.

N M Rofliclnld & Soms Bauted
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3.  Financial Risk Management {continued)

68 3.5 Interest rate risk (continued)

The table below shows assets and liabilities according to the type of interest rate risk to which they are exposed:

Not directly

Fair value Cash flow interest rate risk exposed to
interest Upto | I-3 3-12 interest
rate risk month months months rate risk
Ar 31 March 2006 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Group
Assets
Cash and balances at centrai banks - - - - 24
Loans and advances to banks B 48754 32000 o - R ) 496
Oerwative financia instruments™ T haa096 3995 (593)  (14417)) 17,646
Loans and advances to customeré o ‘ I680|99 o 334, 468 61;885 12,674 ‘ (|3226).
Debt and equity securities o 121009 835852 1330735 778552 7372
orer e AR e DR T e
Total 2,094,711 1,108,345 1,387,6%0 647,055 240,673
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 2,005034 122,356 -- (134)
Due 1o customers o o |205882. 242343. o I -
Dervatve fnancal nsuments®  (08282) 248870 79412 (20000) 40550
Debt secunties in issue T wumo Tiossor ss7ees -
Subordinated liablities i S woagly 57549 (4572)
ot oL S e e
Total 3,349,977 7i7.970 741,999 37,549 337,186
Company
Assets
Cash and baJances at central banks - - - - 24
Loansandadvancestobanks R 7]48 o 23790”” L 4I3
Dervative financil instruments® T a0 @nleny (el - 13315
Loans and advances 10 customeré - I 3|082|‘ I08I4”” - - (\5485)“
Debt and equity securities " 104560 660299 1098865 664356 5236
o - s - S e T raw
Total 1,471,621 651,74 1,092,935 664,556 221,285
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 2002.838 6,185 - - (134
e o costormers B oases i R S
Denvatrve firancial Finstruments* Cne217%) 81616 80563 19637
Debt securities in issue h 37107¢ - o . -
Subordinated Fabilities 75,100 104619 57549 (4972}
Other Labilities o - - - 255,133
Total 3,301,392 87.801 185,182 57,549 269,664

* netional value

™ M Rothsdnld & Sons Lanited
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.5 Interest rate risk (continued)

]
69

The following disclosutes are in accordance with the requirements of IFRS prior 10 the adoption of IAS
32 and 1AS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2005:

Non-Trading Book Interest Rate Risk
The Company and its subsidiary undertakings, N M Rothschild & Sons (Cl) Limited and the Five Arrows
Finance Limited group, hold interest rate exposure in the non-trading book. Instruments are allocated to
time bands by reference to the eatlier of their next contractual interest rate repricing date and their maturicy
date. Non-trading book interest rate risk, after taking account of off-balance sheet hedges, comprises:

More More More
than than than
3 months 6 months | year
butnot  butnot but not
more more more More Non-
3 months than than than than interest
or less 6 months | year 5years 5years bearing Trading Total
At 31 March 2005 £m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Loans and advances to banks 436 10 - - - - - 446
Loans and advances to customers 1,652 S A7 YRR SN ¥ L)
ot ocuntios AR d i [739 s s S 5 - o
Otherassets > R TR 5.7 257
Assets 3827 291 437 492 92 200 57 539
Deposits by tbanks (1537 (50) (43) (1} - - - {1.666)
.(..:us.tomef accoulJr\ts”mm (I‘.‘22‘7). . "'(58) (B0) (20 - (|385)
Debt securities in ssue aan @) (g oL - - (1.508)
Subordinated abiites (03 (53 . s 3
.éﬁarého[derg“fuhég . ST : 250, o (280)
_&her !iabinties“ R : . D) (57). .(.326.).
Liabilities (4.289) Q@m {f33) (21} (75)  (549) (57) (5,396)
Off-balance sheet hedges {3) 123 36 (93) (63) - - -
Gap (465) |42 340 378 (46)  (349)
Cumulative gap (465) (323) 17 395 349 -

N8 Rothsybild & Sers Lantiled
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

70 3.6 Liuidity risk
) Liquidity is measured by classifying assets, liabilities and other cashflows into future rime bands using a
series of prudent assumptions and calculating the resultant surplus or deficit in each period. The Group

Assets and Liabiliries Committee recommends policies and procedures for the management of liquidity
risk. The Executive Committee has set deficic limits for each period.

The table below analyses financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period, at the balance sheet date, to the contractual maturity date.

3 months Non-
or less I year 5 years financial
but not or less or less assets
Repayable  repayable but over but over QOver and
on demand on demand 3 months lyear  5years liabilities Total
At 31 March 2006 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Assets
Cash and baIances at centra\ banlc; 24 - - - - - 24
LO&HS and advances tO baﬁ@ 59,' 83 o 22 067 a —‘ - — ‘ o '— o .—. o 8 |250
Denvaﬁve fnancml mstrurnents S 6359”7” 7 2768 7 7270 I249 o 17,646
Loans and advances to customers . |I74? o IOS 9 | 8 443 46()" I, I76 I99" 339 696.“”“ - 2077 020 -
Debt and equity securities 7372 415659 766562 1267735 616492 - 3073520
Other assets C 7743 61479 3683 31545 21062 33649 229014
Total assets 155,822 611,482 1216473 2,482,749 978,299 33,649 5,478,474
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 17.64] | 8{)2““9 191,752 I 15,444 - - 2 127, 256
Duetocustomers 205058 1071585 144276 21879 5427 1448225
Denvatnve Fnanual mstruments - 2,698” . 7 78 3 14232- - l?. 505 40 550
Deb't secuntles in 4ssue - 37|.|70” 7 |74.365 383,603 104,401 1 033 539
Subordinated i\abmtles 7 _ - 232296”. . - 232 296
Other labilties 14168 183485 18135 50707 36205 1i5 302815
Total liabilities 239,565  3,435.887 532415 585865 390834 15 5,184,681
Net liquidity gap (83.743) (2,824,405) 684,058 1,896,884 587465
Cumulative liquidity gap (83,743) (1,908,148) (2,224090) (327,206) 260,259

N M Rerlfaschild & Sers Liniled
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3. Financial Risk Management {continued)

3.6 Liquidity risk {continued)

fﬁ?l;

3 maonths
or less f year 5 years Non-
but not or less or less financial

Repayable repayable but over but over Over assets and

on demand on demand 3 months | year 5 years labilities Toral
At 31 March 2006 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Company
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 24 - - - - - 24
Loans and advances to banks ) 24832 o 65|9 I - - - 73&.35li ‘
Denva‘csve fnanoal ms‘trumentsm . 4430‘ S ~ |373I.5‘
Loans and advances to customers 3841 88962 374130 694741 1306150
Debt and equity securites T 5236 365462 557028 1051 ~ 2533516
Other assets 76243 49085 - 20018 o3 52101 207782
Total assets 110,176 514,558 932905 1,772,850 719,548 52,101 4,102,138
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 7074 I 765625 233,590 2,600 - - 2008 889
Due to customers 3520 30238 197099 383£06 - - 1014463
Denvatlve f'nanual mstmments - 3373 ) 2,827“ 405I 9‘386 - 19, 637“
Debtser_untes m 155ue - 7 37| 170 R - 37I,|70
Subordinated liabiities - - 23229 - 23229
Other liabilities T 13037 157846 10912 37379 33844 115 255133
Total liabilities 133631 2618252 444428 427636 277,526 115 3,901,588
Net liquidity gap (23.455) (2,103,694) 488477 1345214 442,022
Curnulative liquidity gap (23,455) (2,127,149)(1,638,672) (293.458) 148,564

N M Rothsehitd & Sons Lanited
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(forming part of the Financial Statements)

3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.7  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of each class of financial asset and liability at 31 March 2006 is the same as the carrying
value, except for debt securities in issue where the values are as follows:

Carrying value Fair value
2006 006
£000 £'000
Group
Debt securities in issue 1033539 1033725
Company
Debt secunties in issue 371170 371,356

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. For financial instruments carried at fair value, market prices
or rates are used to determine fair value where an active marker exists (such as a recognised exchange), as
it is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument, Market prices are not, however, available
for certain financial assets and liabilities held or issued by the Group. Where no active market price or
rate is available, fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs
based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Valuation techniques are generally applied to over the counter derivative transactions and unlisted debt
and equity securities, trading portfolio assets and liabilities. The most frequently applied pricing models
and valuation techniques include discounted cashflow techniques and optien valuation models. The
values derived from applying these techniques are significantly affected by the choice of valuation model
used and the assumptions made concerning factors such as the amounts and timing of future cash flows,
discount rates, volatility, and credir quality.

The change in fair value recognised in the income statement for financial instruments whose fair value
was determined using a valuation technique was £6,118,000.
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.7 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following disclosures are in accordance with the requirements of [FRS prior to the adoption of IAS

32 and IAS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2005.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2003 comprises:

2005 2005
Book value Fair value
£000 £'000
Trading book financial assets and liabilities
Assats
Cash and balances at central banks 1511 1,511
Interest r'até ﬁontrads 7 7 - o 4192 4;&92
Fo}eignr exchange contfads 7 7 : - o 7 Il 2.7l : 7,12%
Commodltiescommas 5247! | 5247”
.Equity ‘sﬁan‘e‘é . 712 712
Liabilities
Interest rate contracts {3.864) (3864)
Fore}gn egcﬁ;nge Contracts ......................... (4520) U (4520)
Commodities contracts - (52471 (52471
Non-trading book financial assets and liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate contracts
- With positive fair values 7.042 3015
_w,thnegat.vefalrvames e < et e (2[2) . . (||639)
Listed securities and other assets for which an active and liquid market exists
Marketable assets
Debt securities 2434039 2,392,650
Equ;'tly Shares et s e e e e o e o ot s 362 e 978“
Liabilities for which an active and liquid market exists
Debt securities in issue (1.507.513) (1.507.430)

All financial assets and liabilities held or issued for trading purposes are carried in the financial statements
at fair value. For those financial assets and liabilities in the non-trading book, fair values have been

determined by valuation against mid-market prices or by discounting forward cash flows.

3.8 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custady and other fiduciary services to customers. Those assets that are held in a
fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial statements. At the balance sheet date, these amounted

to approximarely £1,209 million (2005: £969 million).

N M Rotinehild & Sony Limiledd
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4,  Net Interest Income

W 2006 2005
e £000 £'000
Interest income
Interest earmned on loans and advances 192401 191,524
interest earned on nvestment securities D 104571 80889

Other interest income - 1

296,972 272,424
Interest expense
Interest on amounts due to barks and customers 155360 135,168
o dem gecur.ne5|mssue e e 52|82 BT 57592
et on subordmated||abmt|es S e I.(f),'|36 :
207,581 202,8%6

*

Included within interest income is £2,059,000 in respect of interest income accrued on impaired

financial assets.

5. Net Fee and Commission Income

2006 2005
£000 £'000

Fee and commission income
Banking and credit-related fees and commissions 13,644 19.422
Fees visar); work aﬁd othér serr\/icrers_r 7 - 7 294,346 155,929

Other fess - Y 2568

31,616 177,919

Fee and commission expense
Investrent banking advisory fees paid 27,191 5073
Other fees pad o 1538 ' 676
28,729 5,749

Investment banking advisory fees paid represent fees paid to other members of the Rothschild group
where the Company has worked in collaboration with another group company in a transaction, or fees
paid to any subcontracted parties outside the Rothschild group.

6. Dividend Income

2006

£000

Avalable-for-sale securities 167
Assets held at fair vaiue through.pr‘“oﬁt orloss . 103
270

Dividend income for the vear ended 31 March 2005 was £181,000.

N M Rollischild & Sons Limited
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7. Net Trading Income

75

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Foreign exchange contracts 6929 886
Intersst rate instruments - trading o ey (108)
interest rate instruments - hedging R
o _— o
Equmes e i i i e Cm ; (é)
6118 3419

Net trading income arises from the movements in fair value of financial assets held for trading and

financial assets designated at fair value through profic of loss, and from hedging strategies. The following

activities give rise to net trading income:

- Trading in foreign exchange spot, forward and option contracts and interest rate furures, swaps and

forward rate agreements,

- Holding equities for trading purposes and positions arising from the underwriting of equiry and

equity-relared issues.

- Ineffectiveness in interest rate hedging relationships: gains and losses on the ineffective portion of

designated hedging relationships are recognised in net trading income.

8.  Operating Expenses

2006 2005

Note £000 £'000

Staff costs {excluding profit share} 9 84,654 78,264
Administrative expenses a3 37578
125,988 115,842

The auditor’s remuneration was £556,000 (2005: £581,000) of which £243,000 (2005: £229,000) related
to the Company. Remuneration payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit work for the
Company and its UK subsidiary undertakings was £677,000 (2005: £255,000), and comprised fees for; tax
advice £250,000 (2005: £47,000), regulatory advice £54,000 (2005: £18,000), transaction support £50,000
(2005: £127,000), accounting advice £214,000 (2005: £nil) and other work £109,000 {2005: £63,000).

N M Ruflsdult & Sony Lintted
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9. Staff Costs

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
Note £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Salaries (exciuding profit share) 58,389 44338 55,065 41,582

Social security costs 5509 4378 5200 3952
Sl benelts anc ot suffcons CUaos e ams s
RN T e i .

- Defined benefit plans 24 10,466 3916 8.680 8.066

- Defined contribution plans 24 1396 1014 1214 647
Postretiement benefits o 649 649 119 779

Staff costs (excluding profit share) 84,654 67,058 78,264 60,148

Directors’ and employees’ annual profit share 124,858 122210 69,009 67530

Long term profit share schemes 8500 28171 14465 14204
Directors' and employees’ profit share 153,358 150,381 83,474 81,734

Total staff costs 238,012 217,439 161,738 141,882

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 916 (2005: 914). The
number of persons employed at 31 March 2006 was 944 (2003: 862). The average number of persons
employed by the Company during the year was 640 (2005: 611). The number of persons employed by
the Company at 31 March 2006 was 662 {2005: 605).

0. Taxation

Tax charged to the income statement:

2006 2005
£000 £000
Current tax
- Current pericd 32706 16,488
- Prior year adjustments o 3 gan
Total current tax 34,068 15,741
Deferred tax
- QOngination and reversal of timing differences (4.750) (5204)
- Prior .)r.eér adjustments . . (2 | 46) IIIIIIIIIII 1!23
.C.I.'w.a.n;ges M tax rates or tax laws N . o .(I94) . -
Total deferred tax (7,090) (4.081)
Total tax charged to income statement 26978 11,660

N M Rothednld & Sons Lisiled
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10. Taxation {continued)

Tax on items credited/{charged) to equity: F“u
2006 2005 -
£000 £000

Deferred tax credit on avai\ab\e-for‘saie investments 365

Cument tax cr'ed|t on av.ﬂlable for sale mvestments I I04

Current tax on subord\r\eted debt mtelesr./exchange movements - 5443 :

Deferred tax on cash ﬂow hedges o (l?}

Defen'ed tax on actuana! gaing and | ‘osses an defned beneft pensuon schemes .(I.O )--- . 5110

Tortal tax credited to equity 4,876 5110

The tax charged on income differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard tax
rate as follows:

2006 2005

£000 £000
Profit before tax 101,584 42,155
Tax calculated at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2005. 30%) 30475 12,647
Ad]ustment to tax charge in respect of pnor years . . (784) R
Adstment defenedtax e et e (194). e S
Income from assoc:a.te recorded net of tax m proft before tax - (I I48}” - (239)
Non tax deductible expenses N 865 I 45-2.
Effect of dlfferredtr tax ra'tes m other countnes - 7 {554) : 72
Income not subject to tax. 7 7 R (266) (238)
Prewously unrecorded deferred tax now recogmsed B - . (I47 I')' ........ ( I455)
Ot o e
Total tax charged to income statement 26,978 11,660

Further information about deferred rax is presented in note 23.

Il.  Group Profit Dealt with in the Financial Statements of the Company

£53,598,000 (2005: £30,483,000) of the Group profit attributable to ordinary shareholders has been dealt
with in the accounts of the Company. As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1983, the
income statement of the Company has not been presented separately.

N M Ruthadukd & Sorrs Limided
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

[2. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group’s use of financial instruments, including derivacives, is set out in note 3. A derivative is a financial
instrument, the value of which is derived from the value of another financial instrument, an index or some
other variable (the “underlying”). Typically the underlying is an interest rate, a currency exchange rate or the
price of a debt or equity securicy. The majority of derivative contracts are negotiated as to amount, tenor
and price between the Group and its counterparties, whether other professionals or customers, and are
known as “over the counter” (*OTC”™) derivatives. The remainder are standardised in terms of their
amounts and sectlement dates and are boughr and sold in organised markets, and are known as exchange
traded derivarives.

Derivative instruments are carried at fair value, shown in the balance sheet as separate totals of positive
replacement values (assets) and negative replacement values (liabilities). Positive replacement values
represent the cost to the Group of replacing all transactions with a fair value in the Group’s favour if the
counterparties default. Negative replacement values represent the cost to the Group’s counterparties of
replacing all their transactions with the Group with a fair value in the counterparties’ favour if the Group
were to default. Positive and negative replacement values on different transactions are only nered if there
is a legal right of set-off, the transactions are with the same counterparty and the cash flows will be setcled
on a net basis. Changes in replacement values of derivative instruments are recognised in trading income
unless they qualify as hedges for accounting purposes.

The Group uses the following derivative financial instruments for both trading and hedging purposes:

—  Forwards and futures — contractual obligations to buy or sell financial instruments on a future date at
a specified price. Forward contracts are OTC contracts, whereas futures are exchange traded derivatives.

- Interest rate swaps — transactions in which two parties exchange interest cash flows on a specified
notional amount for a predetermined period. Most swaps are OTC instruments. Interest rate swap
contracts generally entail the contractual exchange of fixed and floating rate interest payments in a
single currency.

—  Options — contractual agreements under which che seller granes the purchaser the right but not the
obligation 1o buy or sell by or at 2 future date a specified quantity of 2 financial instrument at a
predetermined price. The purchaser pays a premium to the seller for this right. Optiens may be
transacted OTC or on a regulated exchange.

Derivatives may be transacted for trading or hedging purposes. Trading involves taking positions with the
intention of profiting from changes in market variables such as interest rates. The Group also enters into
derivative transactions for the purpose of hedging exposures in the non-trading beok. The accounting
treaement of hedge transactions depends on che nature of the hedging relationship and whether the hedge
qualifies as such for accounting purposes. Derivative transactions may qualify as hedges for accounting
purposes as either fair value or cash flow hedges.
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[2. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair Value Hedges | 797
The Group's fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used 1o protect against changes in T
the fair value of fixed rate lending, fixed rate debt securities and fixed rate borrowing.

For the year ended 31 March 2006 the Group recognised a net gain of £370,000 representing the change
in fair value of the ineffective portions of fair value hedges. The fair value of derivatives designated as fair
value hedges at 31 March 2006 was £11,701,000.

Cashflow Hedges
The Group is exposed to variability in future interest cash flows on non-trading assets and issued debt
which receive or pay interest at variable rates.

Gains and losses on the effective portion of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are recorded
in shareholders' equity. Gains or losses on any ineffective portion of these swaps is recognised immediately
in the income statement.

No gains or losses were recognised in the income statement in respect of the ineffecrive portion of cash
flow hedges.

The fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges at 31 March 2006 was (£8,828,000}). At
31 March 2006, an unrecognised fair value loss of £310,000 associated with these derivarives has
remained deferred in shareholders’ equity and will be transferred to the income statement when the
hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

The schedule of forecast principal balances as at 31 March 2006 on which the expected interest cash
flows arise is as follows:

More than  More than  More than

I year 3 years 5 years
but not but not but not Mare
| year more than more than more than than
or fess 3 years 5 years 10 years |0 years
As at 31 March 2006 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Group and Company
Cash inflows (assets) - - -
Cash outflows (lablftiesy . B (104619
Net cash flows - - - - (104,619}

I A Ruthaddld & Sunis Limiled
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[2. Derivative Financial Instruments {continued)

The table below shows positive and negative replacement values for detivative contracts held ar 31 March.

Contracts held for trading purposes
Positive fair value

Notional principal

Negative fair value

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Group
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange deals 762932 405677 3.341 7014 (7.730) (4.407)
OTC options bought and sold 404 108056 - 113 -3
767,536 513,733 3,341 7,127 (7.730) (4,.520)
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 922,288 585,149 6869 4,087 (4925) {3.793)
QTC options bought and sold 478337 134947 1815 e (1815 (o)
1,400,625 720,09 8,684 4097  (6740)  (3.803)
Exchange traded futures 55500 209886 29 95 (8  {6})
1,456,125 929,982 8713 4,192 (6,768) (3,864)
Commodities contracts
Forward commodities contracts 9340 578910 2,180 52,358 (2,343)  (52358)
OTC options bought and sold 7738 5475 825 113 (@25) (3
17,078 633,664 3,005 52,471 (3,168) (52,471)
Equity contracts
Warranis 16 - 232 - - -
Total 2,240,755 2,077,379 15,291 63,790  (17,666)  {60,855)
Company
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange deals 52,537 90,488 87 687 (84) {679)
52,537 90,488 87 687 (84) (679)
Interest rate contracts
Swaps _ 883,861 585,149 6812 4087 (4,798} {3,793)
OTC options bought and sold 478337 134947 181s | 10 (1815) (10)
1,362,198 720,096 8,627 4,097 (6,613) {3.803)
Exchange waded futures 55500 209.886 29 95 (28) (61
1,417,698 929.982 8,656 4,192 (6.641) (3.854)
Commodities contracts
Forward commodities contracts 9340 578910 2,180 52,358 (2,343)  (52.358)
OTC optiors bought and sold 7738 54754 825 {13 (825) e
17076 633464 3,005 52471  (3,168)  (52471)
Equity contracts
Warrants 16 232
Total 1,487,329 1,654,134 11,980 57,350 (9.893) (57.014)
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12.  Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Notional Positive  Negative
principal  fair value  fair value
2006 2006 2006
Contracts held for hedging purposes £'000 £'000 £000
Group
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 724546 2355  (22,884)
. 724,546 - 2,355 (22684)
Company
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 315,890 1,335 (9.744)

The following disclosures were made in accordance with the requirements of UK GAAP for the year

ended 31 March 20605:

An analysis of the movement of unrecognised gains and losses on ‘contracts held for hedging purposes’

comprises:
Gains Losses Net
2005 2005 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000
Unrecognised gains & losses brought forward 2366 5141 (2,775)
F.{éc.:.:).ga.se.d.i.ﬁ 'F"ér'io'd fbtiiuti =i O - .(.3,.7;(.).[). . (3|5|} o ....(550)
Recognised by reclassification to trading contracts N TN 91
Gains & losses arising in period but rot recognised 3308 9528 (6220)
Unrecognised gains & losses carried forward 1,973 11,427 (9.454)
Expected to be recognised in next 12 months 1,300 3156 (1.856)
Recognised in greater than 12 months 673 8271 (7598)
1,973 11,427 {9.454)

A1 Rollischild & Soeon Limited
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3. Loans and Advances

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Cempany Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loans and advances to banks 81,250 31,351 446,280 246,211
Loans and advances to customers:
Group Company
Note £000 £'000
At 31 March 2005 2,258,609 1,419,791
Adoption of IAS 32and 1AS3 2 (193599) (192.825)
At I April 2005 2,065,010 1,226,966
Loans and advances to custorners 2,090,033 1315736
Allowarce for credit losses (13013) (9.586)
At 31 March 2006 2,077,020 1,306,150
Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables:
2006 2005
Group £000 £'000
Gross investment in finance leases, receivable:
| year or less 42,179 43,132
5yearsor \essbutoveﬂyear e e e e e e 92!64 . 83283
G years Rt et 1+t e e 2302 .|:67_O. .
136,645 128,035
Uneamed future fnance income on finance leasess (25456) 4013y
Net investment in finance leases 111,189 104,022
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:
2006 2005
Group £'000 £'000
| year or less 30,389 34,285
Sl years or less bﬁt ovér | ye&r 78,640 . 68357
Over Syears 2E 80. o 1,400
111,189 104.022
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13. Loans and Advances (continued)
Allowance for credit losses ‘83
Group Company
Specific General Collective  Total  Specific  General Collective  Total
£'000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £'000 £'000  £000
At 31 March 2005 i8,655 9,963 - 284618 16,655 7833 - 24488
Adéﬁuc;n e e T BT T ‘
and 1AS 39 (note 2) (98)  (9.963) 8592 (1,46%) {7.833) 7629  (459)
At | April 2005 18,557 - 8,592 27,149 16,400 - 7629 24029
Charge 10 income statement 4090 (826) 3264 a5l - (648) 3913
Argouhtsf";"g}{{t;}; o "‘('_z'c;(jgﬁ}' - C - (008 (18 sy - (18.151)
Unwmd ord,scoum M (323) (323) % (323) .(32.3)
e - 2953 e 2953 e - - o
Fore;gn cune};‘c.),...[}éﬁs|§tac-,r{.-.-" . (oo ST : A
and other adjustments 32 - - 32 32 - - 32
At 31 March 2006 5.247 - 7766 13,013 2,605 - 6981 9,586

Interest income on impaired loans and advances to customers was £1,987,000.

Allowance for credit losses relates to loans to customers.

The following disclosures were made in accordance with the requirements of UK GAAP for the year

ended 31 March 2005:

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Group Company

Specific  General Total Specific  General Total

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

At | April 2004 12,888 11,935 24,823 12,394 7,833 20,227

Charge against profis a3 (1054 4409 5360 - 5360

Amounts written off oy asey gy (1.112)

Recoveries lesl 66l 27 27

Exchange.adjustrneﬁts“ . ””"(E'4) a . fl4) HE)! (14
.Dispésa! of éﬁbs‘rdiar"y unde‘r‘takriﬁgs o L l(g.! 3) (9 IISj

At 31 March 2005 18,655 9,963 28,618 16,655 7,833 24,488

Specific and generat bad debe provisions relate to loans to customers.

A Rutheculd & Sois Limited
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13.  Loans and Advances {continued)

84 Non-performing lending excluding problem country exposure
' 2005 2005
Group Company
£000 £'000
Gross non-performning lendrg 14716 13176
interest in suspense (2223} (2.223)
, 12,493 £0,953
Provisions @811} (8,692)
Net non-performing lending 3682 2,261
Problem country exposure
2005
Group and Company £000
Exposure 1o problem countries 5652

Exposure is stated after taking into account provisions against commercial risk. ‘Problem country” means
a counury thar is having difficulty servicing its external debt as evidenced, for example, by rescheduling or
arrears of interest or principal payments. Exposures to problem countries include advances to counterparties
in problem countries and debt securities issued by borrowers in problem countries.

[4. Debt and Equity Securities

2006 2006
Group Coampany
£000 £'000
Securities available-for-sale
Debt securities - at fair value
— Listed 1,823,785 1,447 441
- Unlisted - S 9a2763 801239
Equity securities — at fair value ' ' ' '
— Listed 1,331 145
;Urﬂi.gtéa e e e o oot 01
Loans and advances - at far valuie ' 20475 280,175
Allowance for impairment - {575} (575)
Total securities avaitable-for-sale 3,073,520 2533516
Total debt and equity securities 3,073,520 2,533,516

A M Rolhschild & Sons Liited
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14, Debt and Equity Securities (continued)

Available-for-sale debt securities of £619,136,000 were pledged as security for liabilities of the Group. :'E;
Gains and losses from debt and equity securities comprise: -
2006 2006
Group Company
£'000 £000
Disposal of available-for-sale securities (393N (3.747)
bt gai;‘ismand i e e SR e e
108 292
The movement in debt and equity securities may be summarised as follows:
Fair value
through
Available- profit
for-sale or loss Total
Note £'000 £'000 £000
Group
At 3| March 2005 - - -
Adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 22634268 712 2634980
Ac | April 2005 2,634,268 712 2,634,980
Exchange differences ek 6 66238
g B O insons
Disposals (sale and redemption) T 043043 (@14 (2044057)
e fromchanges e SRR o (8937) (R (8937)
N impai;r_n_;%{ e e o e (588) R '('5'88)
At 31 March 2006 3,073,520 - 3,073,520
Company
At 31 March 2005 - - -
Adoption of IAS 32 and 185 39 2 gman T2 1980.186
At | April 2005 1,979,474 712 1,980,186
é;;’c{ggnge I e o
g TR o e esese
Disposals (sale and redemption (liaae @19 (1,115338)
lLosses_ffcf)m ché.nges iﬁ i.'air. V.3|lJE R (83!9) o - (8.3|9)
Allowance for impairment (588) (588)
At 3t March 2006 2,533516 - 2533516

N A sk & Sons Limited
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[4. Debt and Equity Securities (continued)

The following disclosures are in accordance with the requirements of TFRS prior to IAS 32 and [AS 39

adjustments for the year ended 31 March 2003:

Debt securities

Group Company
Balance Market Balance Market
Sheet Value Sheet Value
2005 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Analysed by issuer
Investment securities
- Bank and building society certificates of deposit 865850 865,157 615019 614,326
_ Otner debt securties 1568.189 1572416 1167103 1,170978
1434039 2437573 1,782,122 1,785,304
Total debt securities 2,434039 2437573 1,782,122 1,785,304
Analysed by listing status
investment securities
— liste¢ on a recognised UK exchange 602,790 604501 422606 424136
~lited ekewhere 781774 783349 S777T2 579207
- unli.gted. e ) i|049;4?5. g 049723 - 78|744 . '7'&'3'|',%|
2,434,039 2,437,573 1,782,122 1,785,304
Analysed by maturity
Due within one year 1,069,004 766,116
o one"yéar'a'ﬁd o\';ér“ S . |_365,035 o |0|6006
2,434,039 1,782,122
Unamortised premiums (net of discounts)
on investment securities 2,232 2,204

Debr securities with a book value of £39,983,000 were charged as securiry for liabilities of the Company.

Movements in investment securities were as follows:

Group Company

£'000 £'000
At | April 2004 2,181,157 1,436,447
Exchange.adju‘.sﬁ;né.nt.sh and .;;r:r.w;:;.!;t.iéatio.ﬁ of premiums and discounts 5491 6?94
o tons T SRR . y 705,661 08 6c
Disposal and maturities (2,458.270) (569.784)
At 3| March 2005 2,434,039 1,782,122
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[4. Debt and Equity Securities (continued)

Equity shares 87
Group Company -
Balance Market Balance Market
Sheet Value Sheet Value
2005 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investment securities
— listed on a recognised UK exchange 170 786 15 bS5
_ listed on a recognised exchange overseas 192 %2 192 192
e B e 3.’225 3300 '2,894 - 2%9
3,587 4,278 3,201 3,276
Other securities
- listed on a recognised UK exchange - -
listed on a recognised exchange overseas 72T
Total equity shares 4,299 3913
Movements on investment securities were as follows:
Carrying
Cost Provisions Value

£000 £000 £000

Group

At | April 2004 N7 2,179 1,538

Addtions Ta2s - 2085

Disposals 20y - )
Exchange mcvemems ........ S (.2|) .
Provisions released U s s

At 3| March 2005 5,748 2,161 3,587

Company

At | April 2004 3,323 2,174 1,149

Add;{ior{s.' i ,2.2,45 5 2245

dlsbosals ....................... 220 . 210

Erxclrwran.g-é “rﬁi.)vemé nts . 9 27 {1 B).
Provisions released (45). . 45

At 31 March 2005

5,357 2,156 3,201

N AL Rulhachitd & Somy Limited
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IS.  Investments in Associated Undertakings

2006 2005
Group £000 £000
At | April _ 8,823 7,082
A L B R e
Share of results (net of tx) 382 798
L TR o (Ii94) . 0%
Exchanged\fferences e S RS
At 3| March 12,119 8,823
The Group’s interests in its principal associated undertakings, which are unlisted, are as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000
Assets 32,254 23,651
R B ey s
Reverves 28540 18024
e ot resis (et of 00 TSRS e e

The Company has a holding of 50.0 per cent (2003: 50.0 per cent) of the issued ordinary share capital
of Rothschild Europe BV. Rothschild Europe BV, incorporated in The Netherlands, is a holding
company whose subsidiary undertakings carry out investment banking advisory activities in continental
Europe. The Company also holds 21.3 per cent (2005: 21.3 per cent) of the beneficial interest in Boar
Lane Estates Limited, 49.4 per cent (2005: 49.4 per cent) of the beneficial interest in Cavendish Estates
Limited and 35.7 per cent (2005: 0.0 per cent) of the beneficial interest in Carlisle Limited. These
companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom and are special purpose vehicles that hold properties

in trust for the beneficiaries.

The Group's interests in associated undertakings are held by the Company at historical cost of

£7,803,000 (2005: £7,303,000).
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[6. Investments in Joint Ventures

a.  Jointly controlled entities

The company holds a 50.0 per cent interest in N M Rothschild Furope Partnership, an English
partnership, and a 50.0 per cent interest in Rothschild Europe SNC, a French partnership. These
partnerships undertake investment banking advisory activities in continental Eurape and are accounted
for as jointly controlled entities in accordance with IAS 31 using the proportionate consolidation
method. The Group's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the partnerships is as follows:

2006 2005
£000 £'000
Current assets 6,506 3012
Currenthab;lmes e . e 5742 227!
income i SO s . e 9.,49.6” e .4]”
Expenses e . e (49|9) (2767)

The Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities is held directly by the Company ar historical cost

of £429,000 (2005: £429,000).

b.  Jointly controlled operations

The company has entered into 2 collaboration with ABN AMRO Bank NV pursuant to which the equiry
capital markets activities of the ABN AMRO group and the Rothschild group are conducted jointly in
the name of ABN AMRO Rothschild. The Group's share of underwriting commirments arising from
the ABN AMRO Rorhschild arrangement is disclosed in note 25.

N M Rulhschild & Sons Limilgd
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[7. Intangible Assets

IW Intellectual
Yo Property
Rights Goodwill Total

Group £000 £'000 £000
Cost at | April 2005 _ 1,000 2755 3755
o . e o -|654 |654
At 3| March 2006 1,000 4,409 5,409
Accumulated amortisation at | April 2005 275 - 275
Amortisation charge S B T £
At 31 March 2006 375 - 375
Net book value at 31 March 2006 625 4,409 5,034
Cost at | April 2004 1.000 2,756 3,756
D|sposajs e [ ) i 0 (I)
At 3t March 2005 1,000 2,755 3755
Accumulated amortisation at | April 2004 175 - 175
}'\mo;{iggﬁ'on”chgrge ...................................... e | o o 00
D|5po§;a!s U e
At 3F March 2005 275 - 275
Net book value at 31 March 2005 725 2,755 3,480

The additions to goodwill result from the purchase of a minority interest in Five Arrows Leasing Group
Limited in Decemmber 2005,

At 31 March 2006, there were contractual commitments of £nil (2005: £nil) for the acquisition of
intangible assets.

N M Rothschild & Sons Linated
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[8.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Cwner Cars,

Occupied Leasehold Fixtures and  Computer

Property Improvements Fictings  Equipment Total
Group £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost at | April 2005 2490 2,168 21,435 21,360 47453
Additions ' o 54 2369 1185 3608
Disposas e ‘ e (508) R (4447) — ([600) - (6555)
Ac 31 March 2006 T 2m 19,357 20945 44,506
Accumulated depreciation at | April 2005 268 1,462 14,481 19,834
Disposals - o 348y (1597
Depréciatibn chafge l i35 387 2097 945 B
At 31 March 2006 403 1,849 13,096 19,187
Net book value at 3|1 March 2006 1,579 373 6,261 1,758
Cost at | April 2004 3835 2,118 24,577 22,056
Aditions . I 56 5693 642
Dispesas T (658 ' (4.998) (382)  (6036)
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - (3837) (950)  (4.787)
At 3| March 2005 2,450 2,168 21,435 21,360 47,453
Accumulated depreciation at | Aprit 2004 134 1,051 15434 19,385 36,004
Disposals ' L 3y (360)  (3.553)
D.spo e o enaklng e o o e e (134:) (7_“) (2”2)
Depreqanoncharge SRS e T 358| e 5'706.‘
At 31 March 2005 268 1,462 14,481 19,834 36,045
Net book value at 31 March 2005 2,222 706 6,954 1,526 11,408

Included within the net book value of cars, fixtures and fittings for the Group as at 31 March 2006 is

£3,291,000 (2005: £3,493,000) relating to assets held for use in operating leases.

91

N M Rolhsglub) & Sors Limiled
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18.  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

g Cars,
L2 Leasehold Fixtures and  Computer
Improvements Fittings  Equipment Total
Corpany £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost at | Aprit 2005 2,168 11,35 19,025 32,546
Additions ST SR e o 59
Di;bosal.s. e e s ,(95), (1308 ([;4(}1).
At 31 March 2006 2,168 11,318 18,588 32,074
Accumulated depreciation at | April 2005 1,462 9,499 18015 28976
rDi's'pﬂogérls T S (63) 7('|,3'00) - (|.363)'
Deprecmoncharge S P S |453
At 3| March 2006 1,849 9,945 17,272 29,066
Net book vatue at 3| March 2006 39 1,373 1,3k6 3,008
Cost at | April 2004 ‘ 2,118 11,938 18615 32671
Addmons . e .......... L 5_0 e i s 647
,D,isposa“sw T . e T (769';)' ) . ) a7
At 31 March 2005 2,168 11,353 19,025 32,546
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2004 1051 9,220 17,068 27,339
D,isposa‘s, . e T (498) (|) o (499>,
Depreganoncharge ‘ e 943 . 2}35 .
At 31 March 2005 £,462 9,499 18,015 28,976
Net book value at 31 March 2005 706 1,854 1,010 3,570

19. Other Assets

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group  Company
£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Accounts receivable and prepayments

101437 89017 59569 53162
52778 41758 62866 46094

Dervatve cortracts L 3750 57350

Other 1096 628 5311 5998
155311 131,503 191536 162,604

Accrued income

N ¥ Rathschifd & Sons Lunited
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20. Debt Securities in Issue

2006 2006 2005 2005 93 :
Group Company Group Company ' -
£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Medium term fioating rate notes 557,968 - 549,390 -
Certificates of deposit in issue S 371070 371170 450595 450,595
Commercial mortgage-backed notes 04401 - 336700 -
Other asset-backed notes - : ~ 8755 -
S T P

1,033,539 371,170 1,5075(3 450,595

Medium term notes are issued under the Group’s Euro Medium Term Note programme. The notes are
issued ar a floating rate of interest and had residual maturities of between 6 months and 4 years as at
31 March 2006. Certificates of deposit issued by the Company had residual maturity dates of up to 3
months as ar 31 March 2006 and are issued at a fixed rate of interest. Commercial mortgage-backed
notes are issued by special purpose entities as part of the Real Estate Capital securitisation programme
and are floating rate notes with contractual maturity dates of July 2015; these notes were repaid in April
2006 as the underlying loan assets were repaid earlier than their scheduled maturiry dates.

21.  Subordinated Liabilities

Group and

Company

Note £000

At 31 March 2005 230580
Reclassification on adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 S (230980
At | Aprl 2005 -
Issuance of bréférénce shéf-éé - ‘ IVOO
Reclassfication of subordinated debt imstrumerts 231746
Egchangemovemehts - e R
At 3| March 2006 232,296
2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Preference shares

£100.000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 100 160 - -
.S.L;l.).r.).rt-:iinated note§ S

Perpetual Foating Rate Subordinated Notes (€150 milkion) 89664 - 103011

Cue to fellow s,ubsi.di:u.’fr u.r'.ldet.'ce.lfv.lin.gs -

Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Loan (€150 milion) 89,664 -- 103.011
Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Loan (USS100 mikion) 43062 43062 52969 52969
Perpetual Fixed Rate Subordinated Loan (£75 millon) 99370 99370 75000 75000

232,296 232,296 230,980 230,980

N M Rutlsdnld & Sons Lmited
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21.  Subordinated Liabilities (continued}

The €150 million perperual floating rate subordinated notes were issued by Rothschilds Continuation
Finance PLC, a subsidiary undertaking of the Company. The notes are guaranteed by the Company, and
the proceeds of the note issue have been lent ta the Company as a perperual floating rate subordinated
loan. The US$100 million perpetual floating rate subordinated loan is due to Rothschilds Continuation
Finance BV. The £75 million perpetual fixed rate subordinated loan is due to Rothschilds Continuarion
Finance {C.1.) Limited; the interest rate has been fixed at 9 1/G4 per cent. The subordinated notes and
subordinated loans are recorded in the balance sheet at 31 March 2006 at their fair value as at 30 March
2006, as explained below.

In accordance with the requirements of TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, the
subordinated debt instruments have been accounted for as equity minority interests from 1 April 2005
(the date of adoption of TAS 32 and TAS 39) to 30 March 2006.

IAS 32 requires financial instruments to be accounted for as equity instruments where there is no contractual
obligation to repay principal or to pay interest. As the subordinated debrt instruments are perpetual, there is
no contractual obligation ro repay principal. The terms of the instruments permir interest payments to be
waived unless the Company has paid a dividend in the preceding six months, The payment of dividends on
ordinary shares is not considered sufficient to cause the instruments to be classified as liabilities because the
Group controls the paymenr of dividends on ordinary shares. On 30 March 2006, the Company issued
£100,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares with mandatory 5 per cent dividends, payable quarserly.
Because the payment of interest on the preference shares is compulsory,.the payment of interest on the
subordinated debt instruments is also, in effect, compulsory and the subordinated debt instruments have
been reclassified as liabilities on 30 March 2006, In accordance with the requirements of [AS 39, on
reclassification the debt instruments have been recognised as liabilities at their fair value on 30 March 2006.

It is the view of the Directors that accounting for the subordinated debr instruments as equity instruments
in the period from 1 April 2005 to 30 March 2006 does not fully reflect their economic characteristics;
although there is no contractual obligation to pay interest, there is a clear economic compulsion to do so.
For a bank, the interest payments are in effect an obligation excepr in extremis.

The pro forma income statement on page 33 shows the results for the year as they would have been
presented had the subordinared debt instruments been classified as liabilities throughour the year in 2 manner
consistent with the prior period. The key differences between the pro forma results and those reflected in
the financial statements are as follows:

i Interest payable on the subordinated debt for the period 1 April 2005 to 30 March 2006 of
£12,506,000 has been treared as an amount due to a minority interest. In the pro forma results,

the interest is treated as an expense.

i An interest rate swap that hedges the interest rate exposure on one of the subordinated debt instrumenes
does not qualify for hedge accounting until the debt is reclassified as a lability, Losses on the swap contract
for the period ro 30 March 2006 of £3,562,000 are reflected in net trading income in the income
statenent. In the pro forma results, the interest rate swap is treated as a cash flow hedge throughout
the year, with gains and losses on the effective portion of the hedge reflected in the hedging reserve.

i Foreign exchange translation losses of £3,639,000 on the subordinated debt inseruments in the
period 1 April 2005 to 30 March 2006 have been recognised directly in rerained earnings; in the

pro forma results, these losses are recognised in net trading income in the income statement.
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22. Other Liabilities

2006 2006 2005 2005 ?;

Group Company Group Company PR
Note £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Accounts payable 31,158 1,871 31,147 19,501
Defired benefit persion fiabiities 24 38667 35844 63591 60484
D o oo s T N - 0855 015
Other liabiftes 2910 1258 4415 747
72,735 48973 160,008 137,747

23. Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred raxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using an effective

tax rate of 30 per cent {2005: 30 per cent),

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 36,462 30,855 27.526 24,273
Récogﬁised in income - 7
Incorne statement credit 7090 .61444 ‘ 4108I 1,587
Recﬁéniéea in eqﬁirf
Defined benefit pension arrangements (1,019 (1,248} 5110 4,995
Avauab\eforgaregecmmes ......................... . el S D
- Fair value measurement 204 106
Transrer tomcome e |6| |56 -
Cash flow hedges -
— Fair value measurement 21 29
;VTrVansfef 1o income S (38) (34)
D';séég;\'sf'gg'ﬁg:i'd;a'ﬁ;.' e S (2.5.5) .
Deferved tax effects on adoption of 1AS 32 and iAS 39 2 .3‘698 3945 - -
At 3| March 46,579 40,253 36,462 30.855

N M Ralbschild & Sons Limited
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23. Deferred Income Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following items:

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Accelerated tax depreciation 5,681 3.480 9.063 3.783
Deferred profit share arrangarrents C legds 16401 8795 8795
Pension and cther post retirement benefits 15813 15253 18550  18.:23
b oo securitis o e s U (2056) |437) R -
Cashﬂbv\}hédges e S S T i N
Alowance for creditlosses 2007 2212 150 150
Other temporary differences o 4306 4251 (96) 4
46,579 40,253 36,462 30,855

The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following temporary differences:

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £000 £000 £000

Accelerated tax depreciation 618 (303) 1,541 {990}

i p}dﬂt L aﬁﬁngements . . S P 4870
S o e (33” (33” e
Pensions and other pés{ retirement berefits " (I 7 | 8) {1.626) 296 Y
o for credit loeee e R - .
Othér{empomry o o |098 (2626) (2,567) .

7.090 6,444 4,081 1,588

The amount of deductible temporary difference for which no deferred rax asser has been recognised 1s

£2,228,000 (2005: £3,773,000).

Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be

pavable on the unremitted earnings of cerrain subsidiaries and other interests as it is not anticipated that

such profits will be distributed in the foreseeable future. If such earnings were remitted, tax of £9.300,000

{2005: £9,200,000) would be payable.
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24. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits

The Company is a member of a group pension scheme, the NMR Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which is
operated by the Company for the benefit of employees of certain Rothschild group companies in the
United Kingdom. The Fund comprises a defined benefit section, which closed to new entrants in April
2003, and a defined contribution section established with effect from April 2003. The Company has
unfunded obligations in respect of pensions and other post-retiement benefirs.

The Company's subsidiary undertaking, N M Rothschild & Sons (CI) Limited, participates in the NMR
Overseas Pension Fund, a defined benefit scheme operated for the benefit of employees of certain
Rothschild group companies outside the United Kingdom. N M Rothschild 8 Sons (CI) Limited has
accounted for its share of the assers, liabilities and costs of the NMR Overseas Pension Fund {“the
Overseas Fund”), that share being determined by reference to the active, deferred and pensioner
membership of the Fund. The figures set out below for the Group include the proportion of the Cverseas
Fund attributable to N M Rothschild & Sons (CI) Limited. At 31 March 2006, the total assets of the
Overseas Fund were £35.8 million (2005: £28.6 million) and the total liabilities were £41.6 million
{2005: £35.0 million). The Group balance sheet includes assets of £17.4 million (2005: £13.9 million)
and liabilities of £20.2 million (2005: £17.0 million} in respect of the Overseas Fund.

The Group and the Company have adopted the revisions to [AS 19 which were published in December
2004. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, outside the
income statement through the statement of recognised income and expense.

The latest formal actuarial valuarions of the Fund and the Overseas Fund were carried out as at 31 March
2004 and have been updated for IAS 19 purposes 1o 31 March 2006 by qualified independenrt actuaries.
As required by IAS 19, the value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost have been
measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group and Company 2006 2005 2004
Discount rate 5.00% 5.50% 570%
Retail price inflation - | o 280%  250%  280%
-E.xplsected return onrbr\zrmr aséefs 7 7 7 . 6.50% 7.10% 1[0%7
Expected rate of salay mcreases R S 350%  390%  380%
Expected rate of pensions increases S 290%  290%  280%

The post-retirement mortality assumptions allow for future improvements in mortality. The mortality
rable used implies that a 60 year old man currently has an expected future lifetime of 23.5 years (2005:
23.4 years, 2004: 21.7 vears), and that a 60 year old woman currently has an expected future lifetime of
26.6 years (2005: 26.4 years, 2004: 25.4 years). The assumed expected future lifetime of a 60 year old
man in 20 years' time is 24.8 years (2005: 24.8 vears, 2004: 21.9 years) and that of a 60 year old woman
in 20 years’ time is 27.8 years {2005: 27.8 vears, 2004: 25.8 years).

N AT Ruthsckitd & Sens Linnled
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24. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheer:

2005 2004 2004
Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £000

380073 348447 333,898
(22437)  (304669) (292230

57641 43,778 41,668
2843 1,193 1,193

2006 2006 2005
Group Company Group
£'600 £0006 £000
Present value of funded obligations 457.165 436970 397.053
Fair value of plan assets O (420984) (403612) (336305
36,181 33358 60,748

Present value of unfunded obligations 2486 2486 2813
Balance sheet liability 38,667 35,844 63,591

60,484 44,971 42,861

Movement in defined benefit obligation:

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At | April 399,895 382916 349640 335091
Current service cost (net ofcontnbutlons R
paid by other plan participants) 8,545 7974 8013 7.37¢
Current semce cost nelatmg to other plan par‘trcwpants F 310 | 3 IOV “ 955 - 955 ‘
Interest cost h 20742 0817 1984 19007
et gams and iosses e e e e e . 43463.. 40842 3| g 1 |Si‘
Benefits paid (18375) (|7474)'"" 12039)  (11.664)
Past service costs 7 3,071} 3071 o 2,000 2,000
At 3| March 459,651 439,456 39989 382916
Movement in plan assets:

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £000 £000
At | April 336,305 322432 304669 292230
Expected retum on plan assets 22851 21946 20177 20317
Acwarial gains and losses 465 32 ....... 45,063 I3 993 13,504
Contnbu‘mc.).r.\é by the Group e 3?.320 ‘ 30,335 . 7. 550 7090
Contnbutions by other plan participants 1,340 1,310 . 955 q55
Berefits piid (18375) (17474 (12035)  (11664)
At 31 March 420,984 403612 338305 322432
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24. Retirement Benefit Obligations {continued)

At 31 March, the fair value of plan assets comprised: 99
2006 2006 2005 2005 o
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Equities 244,104 232482 226,503 217,650
o R 02397 4|,|'2'2 e
di.lt.s.fcash S . 83,485 79921 52.77j 49;400
ropers, T s s s isea
R : C ean e JOE
420,584 403,612 335,305 322,432

The expected return on assets for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 was 6.5% p.a. (2005: 7.1%).
The rate of return is derived from the weighted average of the long term expected rates of return on the
asset classes in the Trustees’ intended long-term investment strategy. A deduction was then made from

the expected return on assets for the expenses incurred in running the schemes.

The actual return on plan assets in the year was £67.0 million (2005: £33.8 million).

Amounts recognised in income statement:

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

Note £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Current service cost 8,545 7974 8013 7376

\.nter'ésltcosi 7 S . B 2i742 208!7 |9.844 ‘ !9007

Expected retum on plan assets  (22892) (21946) (21177 (0317)

T

Total (included in staff costs) 9 10,466 92216 8,680 8,066
Amounts recognised in statement of recognised income and expense:

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Actuanal gains and (losses) recognised in the year 3,069 4221 (17490)  (16,647)

Cumulative actuarial losses recognised '
in the statement of recognised income and expense {(14421)  (12426) (17490 (16647)

During the year, the Company paid a special contribution of £20.0 million in addition to its regular

contzibutions. Tt is estimated that total contributions of £13.8 million will be paid to the defined

benefit pension schemes in the year ending 31 March 2007, of which it is estimated that the Company

will pay £7.8 million.

The highest paid director was 2 member of a defined benefit pension scheme under which his accrued

pension ar the year end was £156,000 (2003: £101,000).

N AL Rulheduld & Sons Lintited
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24. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

Defined contribution schemes

2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £000 £000

Contributions paid 1.596 1,014 1,214 647

These amounts represent contributions to the defined contribution section of the NMR Pension Fund

and other defined contribution pension arrangements.

25. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Guarantees
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 76,622 721014 76617 724427
Commitments
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines
and other commitments to lend 472,142 462,504 287,147 266,853
Underwm]ngcommitmenfs - e e e 54269 B 54269 B -
526,411 516,773 287,147 266,853

Underwriting commitments represent the Group’s share of ABN AMRO Rothschild’s underwriting

commitments in equity capital markets transactions.

From time to time the Group is involved in judicial proceedings or receives claims arising from the conduct

of its business. Based upon available information and, where appropriate, legal advice, the directors do

ntot believe that there are any potential or actual proceedings or other claims which will have a material

adverse impact on the Group's financial position.

Assets pledged

Asset Related liability

2006 2005 2006 2005

Group and Company £000 £000 £000 £'000
Investment securities 619,136 59983 413000 -

Assers are pledged as securiry over Euroclear overdraft facilities and as collateral to secure liabilities under

repurchase agreements,

A mandarory reserve deposit of £680,000 (2005: £814.000) is held with the Bank of England in accordance
with statutory requirements. This deposit is not available to finance the Group's day to day operations.
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26. Operating Lease Commitments

At 31 March 2006, the Group was obligated under a number of non-cancellable operating leases for
premises and equipment used primarily for banking purposes. The significant premises leases usually
include renewal oprions and escalation clauses in line with general office rental market conditions as well

as rent adjustments based on price indices.

Minimum commitments for non-cancellable leases of premises and equipment are as follows:

Land and Computer

Buildings Equipment
2006 2005 2006 2008
Group £000 £000 £'000 £000
Upto | year _ 4700 1 9
VBetweenrl and 5 years S - o N 2?274 o273 - -
More than 5 years 45,376 52,490 - -
79,797 86,909 135 9l

Operating expenses include operating lease rentals of £8,368,000 (2005: £8,624,000).

27. Share Based Payments

Certain directors of the Group participate in a group Employee Share Opton Plan (“ESOP”) administered
by its parent undertaking, Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG. On fisst time adoption of IFRS, the
Group has used the exemption in IFRS 1, whereby the requirements of IFRS 2 are not applied to share
options granted prior to 7 November 2002, As such, the share options issued to directors of the Group
are not recognised in the financial statements.

Certain directors of the Group have options over 99,350 (2005: 102,550) shares in Rothschilds
Continuation Holdings AG, which were granted berween 1995 and 2002. The options vest after being
held for 3 years. An external valuation of the underlying shares is performed annually and vested options
may be exercised during the three month period following the valuation. The options have a contractual

life of 10 years.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as follows:

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Price Exercise Price
Group and Company Number SFr Number SFr
At | April 102,550 1,335 102,850 1,329
Forferted (500) 1250 (340) 1250
Expred . - (2,701 &00 -
Exercised o - . (660) 627
Net transferred . N 700 1,385
At 31 March 99,350 1,356 102,550 },335
Exercisable at the end of the year 99,350 1.356 82.800 1,355

N M Kotivchild & Sons Liemited
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27. Share Based Payments (continued)

102! Shate options outstanding at 31 March were as follows:
- Group and Company
2006 2005
¥Veighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
Options Contractual Options ~ Contractual
Exercise price range SFr Outstanding Life (Years)  Qutstanding Life (Years)
501 - 750 1100 04 3.800 04
e Two e A o
ool 150 ! : e tocio &
s s 60650 ia
99,350 44 102,550 53

Certain directors of the Group are parties to cash settled share based payment arrangements. The benefits
of these arrangements vest after 30 September 2008 provided that certain conditions regarding the growth
in the value of the relevant group company are met.

20086 2005
£000 £'000
The cost of share based payment arrangemgnfcsrgharged to the income statement 803 953
Carrying value of the liability arising under share based paymert arrangements 1941 1288

In calculating the charge two the income statement the value of che arrangements was calculated by
reference to an estimated value of the company based upon an average of prior year, current and forecast
post tax profits and the price/earnings ratios of recent marker transactions for businesses of a similar type.

28. Dividends Per Share

2006 2006 2005 2005
per share £'000 per share £'000
Equity Interests
Firal diw_c_[end prior year (paid) o 25p 12,500 10p 5.000
Interim dividend (paid) S 0p 15000 Bo 12500
Final diadend (paid) ‘ sop 25000 - -
1050 52,500 3/p 17500

N W Rothschild & Sens Limided
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29. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
wich less than three months' original macuriry.
2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and balances at central banks 24 24 FS1 27

Loans and advances to banks 69046 24486 400799 238593
69,170 24510 403310 238620

30. Transactions with Related Parties

Group

Transactions with key management personnel (and their connected persons) of the Group are as follows:
2006 2005
£000 £000

At 31 March

Loans 7 897 814

Depaosits 2279 1,652

Key management personnel are the directors of the Company and of parent companies.

Loans o ditectors are secured and are made in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial
terms, with the exception of travel season ticket loans of £7,000 (2005; £8,000) which are unsecured
and provided on an interest-free basis. Deposits are also taken on normal commercial terms.

2006 2005
£000 £000
Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits 20203 17354
?ost-‘éﬁ‘}blo‘yﬁqéﬁ‘t‘ Lo e T o 9
v !ongtermempbyee g : o T T e
o o SRR Vs

Details of share based payments are disclosed in note 27.

103/
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30. Transactions with Related Parties {continued)

Amounts receivable from parent, associates, joint ventures and other related parties of the Group are

as follows:

2006 2005
Loans and Other Loans and Other
advances assets advances assets
£000 £000 £'000 £000

At 31 March
Amounts due from parent companies - 205 - 2396
Amountg dlgél from assoaates e e . 3320 o 3992
Amounts due from other related parties 54950 11658 40256 7965

Other related parties are fellow subsidiaries of Concordia BV.

Amounts receivable include loans and amounts recoverable from related parties in respect of expenses

incurred on their behalf and services provided. Loans are made in the ordinary course of business and on

substantially the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties.

Amounts payable to parent, associates, joint ventures and other related parties of the Group are as follows:

2006
Subordinated
Deposits  loan capital

Other

2005
Subordinated Other

liabilities  Deposits  loan capital  liabilities

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March
Amounts due to parent companies 11,735 B
Amounmduetopmtv i ,729 A R |2|8
A}ﬁoun{g' e S |',23:'3 .
e pensmn T 23833 . - |9|e - - i
N pames et e S .
- subordinated - 142,532 - - 127969 -
“other - 30984 R 4,33I7 .30,224 - 5,363“

Amounts payable consist of deposits and bank account balances taken in the ordinary course of business

and on substantially the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties. £142,532,000 (2005:

£127,969,000) relate to amounts loaned to the Group on a subordinated basis, the terms of which are

set out 1n note 21,

The Group has also entered into lease agreements with a fellow subsidiary of the Concordia BV group
for the rental of office space. The lease agreements expire in 2014 and 2018 and are on normal

commercial terms.
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30. Transactions with Related Parties {(continued)

Amounts recognised in the income statement of the Group in respect of related party transactions are E)S_]
as follows: S
Other
Parent Joint Pension related
companies  ventures  Associates funds parties Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2004
Interest receivable - - 2,65 2,651
Interest payable 777 63 - 292 1935 3,067
B e e
omscmengeamwm e s
Recoverable experses 2349 - - - 4,895 7244
2005
Interest receivable - - 2719 2719
Interest payable ST s 121 2252 3,722
Fees aﬁd cofnmissiﬁms éﬁeivable . . - - 265 265
Fees and commissicns payable 1324 697 4385 6406
Recoverable experses 3639 - ) 4806 8445

Fees and commissions receivable/payable relate to transactions where the Group has worked in collaboration

with other related parties.

Company

Amounts receivable from parent, subsidiaries, joint ventures and other related parties of the Company

are as follows:

2006 2005

Loans and Other Loans and Other

advances assets advances assets

At 31 March £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Amounts due from parent companies - 205 - 2,396
Amounts due from subsidiaries ' 135539 1693 129014 1037
Amounts due from asﬁociates - 3320 - 3997
Ameunts due from other related part.ies - 43893 | 1.6.27“ 19681 7965 .

Amounts receivable include loans and amounts recoverable from related parties in respect of expenses

incurred on their behalf and services provided. Loans are made in the ordinary course of business and

on substantially the same terms as comparable transactions with third pardes.

N 81 Bothuduld & Sons Limiled
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30. Transactions with Related Parties {continued)

The Company has introduced commercial mortgage loans to Real Estate Capital Limited ("REC”), a special
purpose company owned by a charitable trust, established to advance loans meeting certain pre-defined
eligibility criteria. The beneficial interest in the loans has been assigned to Real Estate Capital No. 2 plc
{(“REC2") and Real Estate Capital Funding Ne. 6 Limited (“RECG”), also special purpose companies
owned by charitable trusts. To fund the acquisition of this beneficial interest, REC2 issued floating rate
notes and RECG is funded by third party banks and by a subordinated loan facility provided by the
Company.

The Company has received fees for the introduction and servicing of the commercial loans and has made
subordinated loans of £1.8 million and £20.0 million ¢0 REC2 and RECG respectively.

Amounts payable to parent, subsidiaties, joint ventures and other related parties of the Company are

as follows:
2006 2005
Subordinated Other Subordinated Other
Deposits  loan capital  liabilities Deposits  loan capital  liabilities
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At 3} March
Amounts due to parent companies 11,735 - 875 35271 - -
Aot d subsldlanes e e s e e
— suberdinated - - 89,664 - - 103,081 -
o 676',i'2'7' S 5056'5454 ST a5
A ntSdue i 3459 e e e 437 S R
Amounts due to associates - o -2
Amounts due to pension funds o 23:333 - I9|6 - 7
Amoun%sﬂ due to other related [V;)arrties” o a -
- subordinated - 142,532 - - 127969 -
—other 26|00 i _43’9 26‘208.” S 5.,.306

Amounts payable consist of deposits and bank account balances taken in the ordinary course of business
and on substantially the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties. £232,196,000
{2005: £230,980,0800) relate to amounts loaned to the Company on a subordinated basis, the terms of
which are set out in note 21.

The Company has also entered into lease agreements with a fellow subsidiary of the Concordia BV
Group for the rental of office space. The lease agreements expire in 2014 and 2018 and are on normal
commercial terms.
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30. Transactions with Related Parties {continued)

Guarantees made on behalf of and received from subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

2006 2005
At 3] March £'000 £'000
Guaranitees made on behalf of subsidiaries 664,107 £53,385
Guarantees received from subsidiaries s7000 57.497

The Company has guaranteed £104,619,000 (2005: £103,011,000) of perpetual floaring rate subordinated
notes and £557,968,000 {2005 £549,390,000) of medium term notes issued by Rothschilds Continuation
Finance PLC. The issue proceeds have been placed on deposit with the Company on terms similar to
those of the notes issued. Other guarantees are made on behalf of subsidiaries in the ordinary course of

the Company’s business.

The Company has received guarantees from a subsidiary of the Company in respecr of certain customer loans.

Amounts recognised in the income statement of the Company in respect of related party transactions

are as follows:

Other
Parent Joint Pension  related
companies Subsidiaries ventures  Associates funds  parties Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
2006
Interest receivable - Ba9T - - - 2433 9130
Interest payable 777 18.567 126 - 22 1414 20176
Fees and commissions receivable N (T - - . - 716
Fees and commissions payable - C - 8550 6490 - 17661 3701
o expen5852349 o e 4895 - 7",8“22
2005
Interest receivable - 4235 - - 2719 6954
Iterest payable 1228 18983 24l 121 2252 22825
Fees and commissions receivable - 2297 - - : 265 265
o ccmm|ss\onspayable— T T e ) sa8s 7730
Recoveréble expenses “ 3639 523 - 4806 8908

Fees and commissions receivable/payable

relate o transactions

collaboration with other group companies.

where the Company has worked in

N A Ruothachild & Sons Limiled
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31.  Minority Interests

W Group Note £000

l\ 7 AtIAprn!2004 L T 3,105
Proﬁt attnbutabie to mmonty m‘terests . \ 624
Reduction h minorty ‘ e ‘ (32).
At 31 March 2005 3647
Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 2 231,043
At | April 2005 - 234,690
F’roftaﬂnsﬁfébletommontylnterests‘ - - - 9226
Amounts patd to mlnonty Vlnteres‘ts subordlnated debt |nterélsl1c ................ _ - (8. 755)
Rec!ass:fcanon of subordlnated debt N I ¥ 7 - .(530.980)
Redudlon in minority N 7 - - 7 - (3.730)
At 31 March 2006 451

The reduction in minority interests during the year to 31 March 2006 relates to the purchase by the
Group of a minority interest in Five Arrows Leasing Group Limited,

32. Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders™ Equity

Available-
Share Retained Translation For-Sale Hedging

Capital  Earnings Reserve  Reserve Reserve Toral
Group £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
At 1 Apnl 7.004 o 50,000 2’29 386 - - - 7%, 386
Proﬁt forthe penod T I 30495‘” - - 30495
Mmonty e R L (624) R o (624)
Shaeholders dividends - oq78%0) -~ (17500)
Actuxrial losses on defined benefit pension obligations - (12380) - - (2380)
Exchange dlﬂ'erences on transiatmn R - 7 -
of foreign cperations - - 201 - 201
At 3I March 2005 50,000 229,377 201 - - 279,578
Adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 (note 2) N L 4BTs (25)  (1361)
At | April 2005 50,000 223 3% 201 4,876 (256) 278,217
B o the s e e 74 506. R : T i 74_(305'
Mino.{[y iﬁ{é@g{ e S o 226} o - _ oae
Shart ehoioers dusdencs 7 o 7 7 - (52 SOO;. - . (52 SOO)
Actumal gAINS On dfhﬁned beneft pens:on obhgauoms - 2,050 : - - 2050
Losses from changes in fair value . - - .(.3.5.3) {36) {38%)
Gamsf'(.lr:;s.s.es) .T..rﬁ.n.s.f.e.n'.e:d t.o income o . o
on dwsposal and impairment - - - {£35) 75 (560)
Fair valus changes in subordunatéd.Frébw\.:t.@.r. B - 926 - . - 926
Exchange GlfrE{’E'..I‘LL“Et;é.T txanstatlorz S .
of foreign operations - - 218 - - 218
At 3| March 2006 50,000 239,251 419 3,888 {217y 293,342

™M Rothschiid & Som Limiled
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32. Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

Awailable-
Share Retained Translation For-Sale Hedging

Capital  Earnings Reserve  Reserve Reserve Total
Company £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2004 50,000 146,915 - - - 196,915
Profitfor the period 30483 - 30,483
Shareholders’ dividends S arsey (17,500
Actuanal losses on delined benel’t pensmn ﬁ_un 5 o ““(I | 653)” R (1 i,653)
At 3| March 2005 50,000 148,245 - - - 198,245
Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 (note 2) T sy - 3085 (227) (187
At | Aprll 2005 50,000 |43 4| | - 3,185 (227) I96 369
Ploft ror lhe penod S 7 I 62 353 - - o 62 353
Mnomy merests e (8‘755)”.‘ e - sy
Shareholders’ dividends o L (52.500) - - (52500}
Actuanal gaans on deﬁned beneﬂt penSIon funds S o 2973 - - - ‘2,973
Losses from changes n I'axr value o ._7“ . - (2I3) o (69) (282)
Falr value changes n subordlnated |ab\\ Lles o 926 ) - - o 926
(Gams)ﬂosses S e e e . .
on disposal and impairment - - - {613) 79 (534}
At 3| March 2006 50.000 148,408 - 2,359 (217) 200,550

Reserves consist of the following (all net of taxes):

Available-For-Sale Reserve — cumulative net unrealised gains/(losses} on fair value changes of available-

for-sale investments until the investment is derecognised.

Translation Reserve — net gains/(losses) arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations.

Hedging Reserve — effective portion of the cumulative change in fair value of derivative instruments

designated as cashflow hedges.

Share capital

2006

2005

Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of £| each

50,000,000

50,000,000

109!
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

33. Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are detailed below. All the principal subsidiary
undertakings are registered in England and Wales except where otherwise indicated. The Company’s
remaining subsidiary undertakings are not material and accordingly no disclosure has been made in

respect of these entities.

Percentage held

N M Rothschild & Sons (Cf) Limited (Merchant banking)

(Registerad in Guemsey Chanmel lslands) oG
Fwe Arrows Fmance Limited (Investment holdmg compan,«) E IOO
Frve An"ows Leasmg Grouﬁ VLrirrﬁl'rcéd (Lease portf'ollo management) I D IOO
Five Arrows Cornmercial Finance: L\mlted (Inveice discounting) T IOO
Fue Arrovs Leasing me.ted (Asset fnance) S - O e e e
Stwe Securtios pe (s o) o7 s
Speaahst Fleet Services Finance L\mwt“eld (Contract hir;é.z.lhd.r."r“\é;ﬁiénance) R 7 100
Rothschxlds Contmuatmn Fmance PLC {Finance company} T 100

The following subsidiary undertakings are special purpose companies, established to advance loans or to
purchase loans from the Group (see also note 30). Although the Group has no direct or indirect
ownership interest in these companies, they are regarded as subsidiaries under UK company law and IFRS.

Real Estate Capltal Limited
Real Estate Capltal Fundlng No 6 lelted

Real Estate Capltal No 2 p\c

Guemsey Loan Asset Securitisat\’on Scheme Limited

T'he historical cost of the investments in subsidiary undertakings was £34,786,000 (2005: £34,786,000)

2006 2005
£'000 £000
Of which
~ Banks 70 70
- Other ' - 34718 4716
34,786 34786

34. Parent Undertaking and Ultimate Holding Company

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Concordia BV,
incorporated in The Netherlands. The smallest group in which they are consolidated is that headed by
Rothschilds Continuation Limited, registered in England and Wales. The consolidated financial statements
of this group are available to the public and may be obtained from Companies House.

The Company’s ultimate parent company is Concordia BV which is incorporated in The Netherlands.

Throughour the year, Concordia BV was controlled by the Rothschild family and cheir interests.
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(forming part of the Financial Statements)

3S. Remuneration of Directors

2006 2005
£'000 £000
Directors’ emoluments 19.406 16,972
Alﬁounts receivable undef WOHg trerTVrV\Vprroﬁt sharé sc.r.wélr.nes. ....... 5906 4361
25312 21,333
Pénsion cohfributions to money #urﬁﬁasé schemes ‘ 485 ‘ 127
Compenmlon R < B . [22| o 2‘2.45‘
27,018 23,705
The emoluments of the highest paid director were £8,251,000 (2005: £3,442,000).
2006 2005
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under
Mcney purchase schemes é
Dfioad b oo -

36. Directors’ Interests

Leopold de Rothschild is a director of Rothschilds Continuation Limited, and his interests in the shares
of Group companies are disclosed in the financial statements of that company. The following other
director of the Company at 31 March 2006 was, according to the Register kept by the Company in
accordance with Section 325 of the Companies Act 1985, interested in the shares shown below:

Rothsehilds Continuation Limited
Cumulative Second 5.25% Cumulative

Concordia BY Preference shares Preference shares

Shares of €100 each of 10p each of £1 each
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Sir Graham Hearne* 320609 320609 1436596 1436596 300700 300700

* As trustee

MM Ruthshild & Sons Limiled
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Brief biographical derails of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are as follows:

Lord George

Lord George was Governor of the Bank of
England from 1993 to 2003, having joined the
Bank in 1962. He is a Non-Executive Director
of Grosvenor Group Holdings Limited and
Nestlé SA.

Lord Guthrie

Lord Guthrie was Chief of the Defence Staff
from 1997 to 2001, having previously been
Chief of the General Staff of the UK army
from 1994 o 1997,

Sir Graham Hearne

Sir Graham Hearne is Non-Executive Chairman
of Braemar Seascope Group Plc and Catlin Group
Limited and is Deputy Chairman of Gallaher
Group Plc. He was previously Chairman of
Enterprise Qil Plc {1991 to 2002} and Chief
Executive (1984 to 1991). He was appointed to
the Board of N M Rothschild & Sons Limired
in September 1970, becoming Non-Execurive

in July 1977,

Peter Smith

Peter Smith is Chairman of Savills plc, a Non-
Executive Director of Templeton Emerging Markets
Investment Trust ple, and a Non-Executive
Director and Deputy Chairman of the Equitable
Life Assuraice Society. He was Senior Partaer of
PricewaterhouseCoopers {and previously Coopers
& Lybrand) from 1994 1o 2000.

Sir Clive Whitmore

Sir Clive Whitmore was Permanent Secretary of
the Ministry of Defence from 1983 to 1988 and
of the Home Qffice from 1988 to 1994.
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Australia

Rothschild Australia Limited
Level 16, 1 O'Connell Street, Sydney
WNSW 2000, Ausrralia

Telephone +G1 ()2 9323 2000
Facsimile +61 (0)2 9323 2323

Level 21, 120 Collins Strees, Melbourne
Victoria 3000, Australiz

Telephone +61 (0)3 9656 4600
Facsimile +61 (0)3 9656 4700

ABN AMRO Rothschild
ABN AMRO Tower, Level 29
88 Phillip Streer, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia
Telephone +61 (002 8259 5000
Facsimile +61 (0)2 8259 5444

Bermuda

Rothschild Trust

(Bermuda) Limited

20 Viceoria Streer, Ground Floor
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda
Telephone + 1 (0)441 295 8591
Facsimile +1 (0)4471 295 3201

Brazil

N M Rothschild & Sons
{Brasil) Limitada

Av. Brigadeiro Faria Lima 2055
{18th Floor)

Sdo Paulo 01451-000, Brazil
Telephone +53 ()11 3039 5828
Facsimile +55 (0)11 3039 3826

British Virgin Islands

Rothschild Trust BV1 Limited
Patm Grove House, PO Box 438
Road 'Town, lorwola

Brizish Virgin Islands

Telephone +1 284 494 71066
Facsimile +1 284 494 7105

Canada

N M Rothschild & Sons

Canada Limited

1002 rue Sherbrooke Quest, Bureau 2300
Moenrréal, Québec, Canada H3A 316
Telephone +1 (Q)514 840 1016
Facsimile +1 (Q)514 840 1045

BCE Mace, TD Canada Trust Tower
161 Bay Streer, Suite 3150, PO Box 206
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5] 251
Telephone +1 416 369 9600

Facsimile +1 416 864 1261

Cayman Islands

Rothschild Trust Cayman Limited
PO Box 144129 APO

5th Floer, Citrus Grove, Geotge Town
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

Telephone +1 345 946 7033

Fucsimile + 1 343 946 7043

Channel Istands

N M Rathschild & Sons

{CI) Limited

PO Box 58. St. Julian’y Courr

St. Julian's Avenue, St. Peter Port
Guernsey, Channel Lslands GY1 3BP
7;’!(]:»')!)?1:' w4 (1481 713713
Facsimile +44 () 1481 727705

'

Rothschild Trust

Guernsey Limited

PO Box 472, St. Peter’s Flouse

Le Bordage, St. Peter Port, Guernsey
Channel Islands GY1 6AX
Telephone +44 (0)1481 707800
Facsimile +44 (021481 712686

Rothschild Private
Management (Cl) Limited
PO Box 556, St. Julian's Court
St. Peter Port, Guernsey
Channel Islands GY1 6]B
Telephone +44 (011481 705050
Farsinile +44 (0)1481 712575

Rothschild Bank

Switzerland (C.1.} Limited

PO Box 330, 5t. Julian’s Court

St. Julian’s Avenue, St. Peter Port
Guernsey, Chanrel Islands GY1 3UA
Telephone +44 (0)1481 710521
Facsimile +44 (0)1481 711272

Chile

BICE Chileconsult Asesorias
Financieras S.A.

Teatinos 220, Piso 3, Santiago, Chile
Tolephane +56 (0)2 696 3576
Facsimile +56 (0)2 696 5825

China

N M Rothschiltd China
Holding AG

Beijing Representative Office
Suite 13095, China World Tower 1
i Jian Guo Men Wai Strect
Betjing 10000+

People’s Republic of China
Telephone +86 10 6505 2018
Faesimile +86 10 6305 2028

N M Rotlechild & Sons Limiled




Group Directory

Shanghai Representarive Office
Suite 1201, Plaza 66

1266 Nan fing Xi Road
Shanghai 200040

People’s Republic of China
Telephone +86 21 6288 1528
Facrimile +86 2] 6288 1517

N M Rothschild & Sons
(Hong Kong) Limited

ABN AMRG Rothschild
40 rue de Courcelles

75008 Paris, France

Telephone +33 ()1 5621 5500
Facsimile +33 (0) 5621 5530

Rothschild & Cie Gestion
42 rue d"Anjou
{After ¥ November 2006:

21 avenue de Messine)

Indonesia

PT Rothschild Indonesia
Jakarta Stock Exchange Building
Tower I, 15th Floor

J1. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 52-33
Jakarea 12190, Indonesta
Telephone +62 (0)21 515 3588
Farsimite +62 ()21 515 3589

ABN AMRO Rothschild

16/F Alexandra House 75008 Paris, France
16-20 Chater Road, Central Tilephone +33 (0)1 4074 4074 Jakarta Stock Exchange Building
Hong Kong SAR Tower 1, F5th Floor

People’s Republic of China
Telepbone +852 2525 5333
Facsimile +852 2868 1773
Telex 74628

ABN AMRO Rothschild

Germany

Rothschild GmbH
Bérsenplatz 13-15, 60313
Frankfurt am Main, Germany

JL. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 52-53
Jakarta 12190, Indonesia

Telephone +62 ()21 515 3588
Facsimile +62 (0021 515 3589

41/F Cheung Kong Center Telephone +49 (0)69 299 8340 It aty
2 Queen’s Road Cenreal Fitesimile +49 (0)69 287 820
Hong Kong SAR Rothschild SPA

People’s Republic of China
Telephone +852 2700 3000
Facsimile +852 2700 5968

France
Rothschild & Cie Banque

17 avenye Matignon

{Afrer 1 November 20:06:

21 avenue de Messine)

75008 Paris, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 4071 4074

Rothschild & Cie

1 rue Rabelais

Rothschild

Vermdgensverwaltungs GmbH

Ulmenstrafle 18, 60325
Frankfurc am Main, Germany
Telephome +49 (0)69 4080 2615
Faesimile +49 (0)69 4080 2655

India

N M Rothschild & Sons (India)

Private Limited

52 Maker Chambers V1, Nariman Paint

Mumbai 400 021, India
Telephone +91 (0)22 2281 7000
Faciimile +91 (0)22 2281 6343

Corse Magenra 12

20123 Milan, Iraly

Telephone +39 02 7244 31
Facsimile 139 02 7244 3310

Via 5. Nicola da Toleatino 1/5
00187 Rome, Iraly

Telephone +39 06 4217 01
Faciimile +39 06 42170 252

Japan

Rothschild Bank AG
Tokyo Representarive Office
Rothschild Japan KK

{Afer 1 November 2006:

23 bis avenue de Messine)
75008 Paris, France

Telephone +33 (0] 4074 4074

Suite 515, 5th Floor, Main Building
Imperial Horel, 1-1-1 Uchisaiwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8558, Japan
Telephone +81 (0)3 3519 8535
Fugsimiife +81 (043 3519 8438

N M Rallsuhiki & Sony Limited
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Malaysia

Rothschild Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Lerter Box Ne. 42, 29th Floor
UEBN Tower, 19, Jalan I* Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone +603 2687 0966
Facsimile +603 2070 1001

México

N M Rothschild & Sons

(México) SA de CV

Campos Eliseos 345-8° piso

Polanco, CP 11550 México DF, México
Telephone +52 55 5327 1450

Facsimile +52 55 5327 1485

Netherlands

Rothschild Europe BV
Herengracht 556

1017 CG Amsterdam, Netherlands
Telephone +31 (0)20 422 2516
Facsimile +31 (020 422 2516

ABN AMRO Rothschild
Gustav Mahleriaan 10

11082 PP Amsterdam, Netherlands
Telephone +31 (0)20 628 9393
Facsimile +31 (0)20 628 8380

Poland

RCF Polska sp. zo.o.
Rzymowskiego 34

02-697 Warsaw, Paland
Telephane +48 (0)22 549 G400
Facsintile +48 ()22 549 6402

Portugal

Rothschild Portugal - Servigos
Financeiros, Limitada

Calgada do Marqués de Abrantes
40-1° Esq., 1200-719 Lishon, Porrugal
Telephone +331 (0)21 397 5378
Facsimile +351 (0)21 397 5476

Russia

Rothschild Russia BV
Novinsky Passazh (8th Floor)
31 Novinsky Boulevard
123242, Moscow, Russia
Telephone +7 095 775 8221
Facsimile +7 095 775 8222

Singapore

N M Rothschild & Sons
{Singapore) Limited

Equity Plaza, 20 Cecil Streer 09-00
Singapore 049705

Telephane +65 6535 8311
Facsimife +65 6535 8326

Rothschild Trust

{Singapore) Limited

Equity Plaza, 20 Ceci! Street 09-00
Singapore 049703

Telephone +63 6532 0866
Facsimile +65 6332 4166

RBZ (Representative)

Pte. Limited

Equity Plaza, 20 Cecil Streec 09-00
Singapore 049705

Telephone +65 6532 0866
Faciimile +63 6532 4166

South Alfrica

N M Rothschild & Sons

{South Africa) {Pty) Limited

Ist Floor, Kagiso House, 16 Fricker Road
lllave 2196, South Africa

Telephone +27 (0)11 215 6800
Facsimile +27 (0211 215 6826

Spain
Rothschild Espafia SA

Paseo de la Castellana, 21

4° Planta, 28046 Madrid, Spain
Telephone +34 91 702 2600
Facsimile +34 91 702 2531

Rothschild Gestién SA
Pasco de la Castellana, 21
3© Planta Derecha

28046 Madrid, Spain
Telephone +34 91 310 7570
Facsimile +34 91 319 4455

Switzerland

Rothschild Holding AG
Rothschild Bank AG
Zollikersrrasse 181

8034 Zurich, Switzerland
Telephone +41 (0144 384 7111
Facsimile +4) (D344 384 7222

Rothschild Trust
(Swilzerland) Limited
Zollikerstrasse 181

8034 Zurich, Swirzerland
Telephone +41 (0)44 384 7111
Facsimile +31 10044 384 7201

21 rue du Rhone

1211 Geneva 11, Swirzerland
Telephone +41 (0122 310 5931
Facsimile +41 ()22 310 3670
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Rothschilds Continuation
Holdings AG

Baarerstrasse 95, Postfach 735
6301 Zuyg, Switzeeland
Telepbone +41 (0)41 720 0680
Facsimile +41 (Q)41 720 0683

Equitas SA

21 rue du Rhone

1211 Geneva 11, Switzetland
Telephone +41 (0)22 310 1833
Facsimile +41 (0)22 310 2450

United Kingdom
N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

New Court, St. Swithin’s Lane
London EC4P 4DU, UK
Telephone +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Facsimile +44 (0)20 7929 1643
Telex 888031

82 King Street

Manchester M2 4WQ, UK
Telephone +44 (0)161 827 3800
Facsimile +44 (0)161 833 0293
Telex 667517

67 Temple Row

Birminghamn B2 5LS. UK
Telephone +44 (0)121 600 5252
Facsimile +44 (0)121 643 7207

1 Park Row

Leeds 1L81 5NR, UK

Telephone +44 (Q) 113 200 1900
Facsimile v44 (01113 243 3039

Carditt
Telephone +44 (0)29 2022 6666
Facsimile 44 (029 2070 8133

ABN AMRQO Rothschild
250 Bishopsgare

London LC2M 4AA, UK
Telephone +44 ()20 7678 1700
Facitmile «44 (0120 7678 1500

Rothschild Trust
Corporation Limited

New Court, St. Swithin's Lane
London EC4P 4DU, UK
elephone +44 (0)20 728G 5000
Farsimile +44 (0)20 7929 5239
Telex 888031

Rothschild Private
Management Limited

I King William Streer

Lendon ECAN 7AR, UK
Telephone +44 ()20 7280 5000
Facsimile +44 (0)20 7280 1567

Five Arrows Commercial
Finance Limited

50 Southwark Street

London SE1 1UN, UK
Telephone +44 (0)20 7089 7749
Faesimile +44 (0)20 7407 5927

82 King Streer

Manchester M2 4%WQ, UK
Telephone +44 (0161 832 4442
Faciimile +44 (0)161 832 4050

1 Park Row

Leeds LS] SNR, UK

Telephone +44 (0)113 242 8180
Facsimile +44 (0)113 243 3039

Rotrerdam House

116 Quayside, Newcastie upon Tyne
NE? 3DY, UK

Tetephone 44 (191 284 7074
Tacsimile +44 (00195 284 1110

Five Arrows Leasing
Group Limited

Heron House. 5 Heron Square
Richmond-upon-Thames
Surrey TW% 1EL, UK
Telephane +44 (0)20 8334 3900
Facsimile vddf (0020 8332 1636

United States

Rothschild North America Inc.
Rothschild Inc.

Rothschild Asset Management Inc.
Rothschild Realty Inc.

Five Arrows Capital

1251 Avenuc of the Americas

5151 Floor, New York, NY 10020, USA
Telepbone +1 (0)212 403 3500
Faesimile +1 (0)212 403 3501

Rothschild Inc.

1101 Connecticut Avenue N'W

Suite 700, Washington DC 20036, USA
Telephone +1 (0)202 862 1660
Facsimile +1 (0)202 862 1699

ABN AMRQ Rothschild LLC
Park Avenue Mlaza, 6ch Floor

55 East 52nd Streer

New York, NY 10055, USA
Telephone +1 (0)212 409 1414
Facsimile +1 (00212 409 1462

Zimbabwe

MBCA Bank Limited

14:th Floor, Ofd Mutual Centre
Third Street, Harare, Zimbabwe
Telephone +263 (0}4 701636
Facsimile +263 (0)4 708005




